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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to Legislative Management to study opportunities to reduce the risk of death and
disease among smokers who will not quit smoking.

Minutes: See Testimonies #1-7

Vice-Chair Hofstad opened the hearing on HCR 3033.
Dr. Brad Rodu: Professor of the Dept. of Medicine introduced the bill. (See Testimony #1)

24:50
Rep. Laning: If nicotine isn't the bad actor in smoking, do you contribute any one thing in
the smoke to cancer?

Dr. Rodu: When you burn any organic matter you create thousands of chemical agents.
Many of those have been measured in smoke, and many are toxic. It is a matter of
absorbing toxins over decades of puffing on cigarettes. No one has been able to specific
which of those toxins leads to which disease. It is too complex a mixture to focus on
specific diseases.

Rep. Laning: You reference E cigarettes and have been looking at some bills to outlaw
smoking and E cigarettes. Is there a secondary danger to E cigarettes?

Dr. Rodu: | don't believe second hand vapor is a health risk. | do believe in the absence of
a lot of education, North Dakotans seeing someone vaping inside doesn't know what that
vapor will do. | see both sides of the issue. A vapor who wants to vapor in his motel room
could vapor all day that there is no way to detect that. There is virtually no residual that is
in any way toxic from that vapor.

Rep. Laning: Is there enough nicotine from a secondary point of view that could affect
somebody?

Dr. Rodu: | can't imagine there is enough nicotine in the exhaled vapor to affect anyone
else. The amount of nicotine in the vapor is rather small and can't see where it would affect
anyone.
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28:37
Rep. Fehr: You began as having no conflict of interest and you don't take any money from
the tobacco industry. Is that what you are saying?

Dr. Rodu: The University of Louisville receives unrestricted grants and they benefit my
research and support my activities in this area. The university pays my salary through those
grants. I'd still have a job if they took the grants away. | can see where that would look a
conflict of interest. My travel is supported by the Harland Institute. Joe Bass the president
of Harland Institute likes this issue and understands it.

Rep. Fehr: Do you know of any relationship between the Harland Institute and tobacco
companies?

Dr. Rodu: | know my relationship with the Harland Institute. They support my issue and
that is all that matters to me.

Rep. Fehr: You used the term, "the failed anti-smoking campaign". Giving the quit
smoking plan is a more comprehensive effort in terms of media, use of quit lines, nicotine
substitutions, and more cognitive therapies. If we accept what you have said, how does
your research fit into this more comprehensive plan?

Dr. Rodu: 1 think it fits beautifully. The current status quo emphasizes only abstinence.
This idea says there are safer products that can satisfy your addiction without requiring you
to quit everything. It can be an adjunct to all of the current programs. | don't see it as
replacing any facet of what is already in existence. I'm only pointing out that what is
already in existence isn't working well enough and my evidence of that is the 443,000 dead
every year.

Rep. Fehr: You are saying this would fit into a counseling format of trying to get them to
quit opposed to get them to move toward a quit smoking?

Dr. Rodu: | think the goal is to quit smoking. This does not emphasize abstinence this
emphasizes a replacement rather than complete abstinence.

Rep. Mooney: How does the surgeon general weigh in on this?
Dr. Rodu: He and most medical organizations do not endorse tobacco harm reduction.
Rep. Mooney: Wouldn't we be opening ourselves up to liability?

Dr. Rodu: You may have misunderstood. I've never asked any government to endorse any
product.

Rep. Mooney: This is how | interpret the bill, that this is a much better alternative than
smoking. Is that right?

Dr. Rodu: You used the word better. Vastly safer.
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Rep. Mooney: Some statistics may counter that.
Dr. Rodu: No statistics counter that.

Rep. Mooney: You are saying this is an alternative like nicotine patches or various drugs.
Aren't we trying to inflect some form legislation into behavior?

Dr. Rodu: I'm not following you.

Rep. Mooney: We have all types of things that can be purchased so they don't smoke, why
would we go towards any form of structured, I'm not understanding this.

Dr. Rodu: | think this calls for study. The purpose of the study is to understand what the
risks and benefits are.

Rep. Mooney: Don't we already have professionals in place in ND to come up with that
same information?

Dr. Rodu: I'm not intimately familiar with your state's tobacco resources.

Rep. Silbernagel: Do you recognize a risk to smokeless tobacco?

Dr. Rodu: Absolutely.

Rep. Silbernagel: Don't you feel that sending a mixed message on the safety of this
product that the end result could be greater use of tobacco products in the long term?
Have you done any research in that regard?

Dr. Rodu: Some indications from Sweden that show there is no increase in use from either
smokeless tobacco or cigarettes. | don't think we have any evidence that this idea would
drive an increase in all tobacco use.

Rep. Marvin E. Nelson: Testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony #2)

Rep. Fehr: Are you supporting or not supporting the resolution?

Rep. Nelson: | am supporting.

OPPOSITION

50:46

Erin Hill-Oban: Executive Director of Tobacco Free ND testified in opposition to the bill.
(See Testimony #3)

55:15

Rep. Fehr: Do you know of any research that documents harm from long term use of E
cigarettes?
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Hill-Oban: I'm not aware of any.

Rep. Laning: You mentioned other groups embarking on what this bill is doing. Do you
know if there is a timeline on results for those?

Hill-Oban: As early as April 2013.

Rep. Damschen: Do you think it would be better to keep smoking than trying these
alternatives?

Hill-Oban: When harm reduction strategies haven't been proven to be safe or effective, |
don't feel that tobacco free ND is going to suggest doing it.

Rep. Mooney: Do you see those as becoming a gateway drug?
Hill-Oban: | don't know.
Kimberlee Schneider: Testified in opposition. (See Testimony #4)

Jeanne Prom: Executive Director of ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy.
(See Testimony #5)

1:0
Rep. Fehr: If the study is funded, this would not duplicate what you are talking about,
correct?

Prom: No it would not, but | feel it would duplicate unnecessarily the work of the USFDA
and whatever the feds put into law trumps over state law.

Rep. Fehr: Could you explain what you mean by that?
Prom: But | believe if there is a federal law and system in place, it is a federal law that set
up this agency to study tobacco and whatever they determine would take precedence over

the state.

Rep. Damschen: Do you think it would be better for a person to keep smoking rather than
use the alternatives?

Prom: There are well established health concerns about these products. Until it is proven
that use of them would overcome any harm, which there isn't right now, we could not
support them.

Rep. Fehr: You said there is research that documents the harm from E cigarette use?

Prom: No, | didn't mean to say that.

Rep. Fehr: You don't know of any research that says of any harm these products do?
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Prom: E cigarettes have not been determined as safe or not by the FDA at this point.
Rep. Fehr: You don't know of any other research from any other entity?
Prom: | do not have that with me today.

1:06:39
Ken Tuba: With the American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network handed out
Testimony for Deb Knuth (See Testimony #6)

1:08:57
Rep. Fehr: E-cigarettes are not included?

Tuba: You are referring to attachment to the testimony? | believe most of that is in
reference to smokeless tobacco products and not the E cigarettes.

1:10

Jack MacDonald: Society of Respiratory Therapists representative testified in opposition.
He felt Dr. Rodu was representing tobacco companies.

Vice-Chair Hofstad closed the hearing on HCR 3033.

Handed in Testimony

Dr. Jim Hughes: From St. Alexius Heart and Lung Clinic is in opposition of the bill.
(See Testimony #7)
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to Legislative Management to study opportunities to reduce the risk of death and
disease among smokers who will not quit smoking.

Minutes:

Chairman Weisz: Called the committee back to order on HCR 3033.

Rep. Fehr: It would be such a change in policy that it would almost have to be a two-step
procedure. The wording or terms in here would also need to be changed.

Rep. Mooney: We just listed to testimony on substance abuses of all types and to me this
is just another way of fueling that. Makes a recommendation, Do Not Pass.

Rep. Laning: Second.
12-1-0

Carried by: Rep. Mooney
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HCR 3033: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends DO NOT
PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HCR 3033 was placed
on the Eleventh order on the calendar.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Management to study opportunities to
reduce the risk of death and disease among smokers who will not quit smoking, by
considering tobacco harm reduction strategies that encourage smokers to switch from
cigarettes to less risky tobacco products and by accurately informing the public of the
health risks posed by smokeless tobacco products, vapor products, and tobacco-derived

products relative to cigarettes

Minutes: “Attached testimony.”

Chairwoman J. lee opens the public Hearing for HCR 3033

Rep. Blair Thorsten introduces HCR 3033 to the committee. Provides information to the
committee See attachment #1. 415 Chairwoman J. Lee asks if this is a mandatory study.
Chairwoman J. Lee asks how the State of North Dakota be involved in the study. Senator
Dever questions about further action. Chairwoman J Lee asks about the timing of the bill
and the tobacco co. Senator Larsen asks for clarification on information provided by Rep.
Blair.

Brad Rodu Professor with Department of Medicine James Graham Brown Cancer
Center University of Louisville. He was asked to speak by Rep. Blair Thorsten. The
research provided is supported by unrestricted grants, from tobacco manufactures to the
University of Lowville. The university administers those grants primarily to protect the
integrity of the research and the researcher. Mr. Rodu states that he no conflict of interest
with respect of these issues, lives on university professors' salary and retire on university
professors' pension. See attached testimony #2. Testifies in favor of HCR 3033. Senator
Axness asks about the manufactures of smokeless tobacco and cigarettes and if they are
the same. Senator Larsen asks about the average life span of an average male and
female, and asks for clarification on those on life expectancy of smokeless tobacco.
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Nather Marrium chair of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory. Testifies in
opposition for HCR 3033. Senator Dever talks about the study informing public of health
risks and asks if that would be useful. See attached testimony #3

Narther Marrium reads the testimony of Dr. Jim Hughes from St. Alexius Heart and lung
clinic. See attached testimony #4 3200

Dr. Eric Johnson Associate Professor in the department of Family and Community
Medicine at the UND School of Medicine, a physician consultant for ND Quits, and the
board president of Tobacco Free North Dakota. Testifies in opposition for HB 3033. See
attached testimony #5. Senator Larsen asks about strokes and smoking, questions
about medications that were pulled off the market. Senator Larsen asks about an oral
inhaler and the difference between an E-cigarettes. Senator Larsen talks about
methadone clinics helping those with addition, 'wouldn't this study be the same. Senator
Dever asks if FDA has not approved it have they disapproved it. Senator Dever asks
about Dr. Johnson concerns with study. Senator Larsen inquires about not approved
FDA, and holistic treatments. Chairwoman j lee asks if tobacco is regulated by the federal
government. Senator Axness asks about the warning on chewing tobacco products.

Jacob Sommerfel, a senior at Century High School, Bismarck ND and a member of
SADD, Students against Destructive Decision. Testifies in opposition of HCR 3033, see
attached testimony #6 Chairwoman J. Lee talks about chewing tobacco. Senator Larsen
asks how much a can of chew is, and how much is an e-cigarette. Mandy Jordan with
SADD is recognized. Senator Dever asks the age of buying E-cigarettes  Senator
Larsen asks about fellow students that are smoking and questions if they are changing to
smokeless tobacco due to the new law. Senator Dever asks if the study revealed that it
was harmful that it would be a good thing. Jessica Paul form SADD is recognized
Chairwoman J. Lee makes a statement about SADD.

Deb Knuth American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network. Shares with the committee
about the health risks of smokeless tobacco. Testifies in opposition to HCR 3033. See
attached testimony #7.

Jack McDonald testifies on behalf of ND Society of Repertory therapists. Testifies in
opposition HCR 3033. Senator Axness asks if E-cigarettes are allowed in buildings.

Courtney Koeble with ND Medical Association is in opposition to HCR 3033.

June Herman Regional Vice President of Advocacy for the American Heart Association.
Testifies in Opposition to HCR3033. See attached testimony #8

Chairwoman J lee closes the public hearing on HCR 3033

Dr. Johnson is recognized
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Chairwoman J lee asks Dr. Johnson about Gl and stomach cancer. Senator Larsen asks

about price of medications for quitting smoking in comparison of the E-cigarettes. There is
a discussion about the cost of smoking.

There is a discussion about starting smoking, and young adults.

Chairwoman J. Lee closes the discussion HCR 3033
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Management to study opportunities to
reduce the risk of death and disease among smokers who will not quit smoking, by
considering tobacco harm reduction strategies that encourage smokers to switch from
cigarettes to less risky tobacco products and by accurately informing the public of the
health risks posed by smokeless tobacco products, vapor products, and tobacco-derived

products relative to cigarettes

Minutes:

Chairwoman j. lee opens the discussion on HCR 3033

Senator Dever states that this is an optional study and does not see the harm in studying
it.

Senator Axness discusses that the studies are not free and that the taxpayers shouldn't
have to pay for the study. Shares his opinion that the tobacco industry that makes
cigarettes is now trying to get study pushed to them off there smoke products on to their
smokeless products.

Chairwoman J. Lee discusses about a visit to the CDC, legislators are not trained in
science for the research, and the rules that come out of FDA.

Senator Anderson, Comfortable with or without the study. Discusses that the research is
going to get done; someone else will do the research.

There is a discussion about the study and the results of the study.
Senator Dever motions for a Do Pass

Senator Larsen seconds
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The committee discusses smoking and the risks.
Chairwoman J. Lee shares her opinion about tobacco.

There is discussion about other risky behaviors and amending it to the bill.
Do Pass 3-2-0

Senator Dever will carry.
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HCR 3033: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) recommends DO PASS
(3 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HCR 3033 was placed on the
Fourteenth order on the calendar.
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Dr. Brad Rodu, University of Louisville

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, | am a professor of medicine, and |
hold an endowed chair in tobacco harm reduction research at the University of Louisville.
[ am a board-certified oral and maxillofacial pathologist, and I was a faculty member at
the University of Alabama Birmingham for 24 years. For the past 20 years, my research
has focused on tobacco harm reduction, and I have published many studies in prestigious
medical and scientific journals on this subject (1). Thank you for the opportunity to
provide information about House Concurrent Resolution No. 3033.

Despite limited success, the nearly 50-year old American anti-smoking campaign has
not helped sufficient numbers of adult smokers to quit. According to the CDC, smoking
kills over 400,000 Americans every year, including almost 900 North Dakotans (2).
These smokers were inveterate in the truest sense — they did not quit in time to avoid a
deadly illness.

Most Americans understand that nicotine is addictive, but they don’t realize that
nicotine can be consumed about as safely as caffeine, another addictive drug enjoyed by
millions of consumers (3). It is tobacco smoke that kills. Eliminate the smoke, and you
eliminate virtually all the risk. This is the essence of harm reduction, which focuses on
reducing disease and deaths, instead of eliminating tobacco and nicotine.

Smokeless tobacco has three attributes as a cigarette substitute. First, it delivers
nicotine nearly as rapidly and as efficiently as smoking (4). Yes, it is just as addictive as
smoking, which is why it is a great substitute.

Seéond, decades of medical research document that smokeless tobacco use is at least
98% safer than smoking (3, 4). While no tobacco product is absolutely safe, claims about

smokeless tobacco risks are often exaggerated by tobacco prohibitionists who cherry-
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pick scientific studies for obscure epidemiologic findings. They ignore the
overwhelming scientific evidence*of little or no risk from smokeless tobacco use. All
health risks from smokeless tobacco, including that for oral cancer, are so low as to be
barely measurable. Statistically, a consumer of smokeless tobacco has about the same
risk of dying from its use as an automobile user has of dying in a car accident.

Third, there is population-level evidence that smokeless is an effective cigarette
substitute. 1 have published a series of scientific studies proving that smokeless is an
effective substitute for cigarettes among Swedish men (5,6,7), who for many years have
had the lowest smoking rate and the highest rate of smokeless tobacco use in Europe. In
fact, over the past 20 years, men in northern Sweden have had lower rates of smoking
than women, a pattern different from that of every other society in the world. Other
research from Sweden has confirmed my findings (8,9).

The consequences of the Swedish experience are impressive: Lung cancer — the
sentinel disease of smoking — among Swedish men is the lowest of 20 European
countries. Not so for Swedish women, whose lung cancer rate ranks fifth highest in
Europe. In a 2009 study published in the Scandinavian Journal of Public Health, 1
estimated that 274,000 lives could be saved each year in the European Union if men in all
EU countries had the smoking prevalence of Sweden (10).

In 2007, the Royal College of Physicians strongly encouraged governments to
seriously consider harm reduction strategies to protect smokers (11). That report, which
corroborates my position, “...demonstrates that smokers smoke predominantly for
nicotine, that nicotine itself is not especially hazardous, and that if nicotine could be

provided in a form that is acceptable and effective as a cigarette substitute, millions of

(%)
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lives could be saved.” In other words, smokers need harm reduction, and harm reduction
needs effective and acceptable cigarette sqbstitutes.l

Critics dismiss tobacco harm redﬁétion, instead felling smokers to use FDA-approved
nicotine medicines. But research documents that they are successful only 7 percent of the
time (12), because they are expensive and provide unsatisfying doses of nicotine.
Inveterate smokers need nicotine, and smoke-free tobacco products are effective cigarette
substitutes because they satisfy smokers’ nicotine cravings.

Smokeless tobacco use is often portréyed asa potentiai problem for children, but this
allegation is disingenuous. In North Dakota, tobacco products are not sold to children.
Tobacco initiation by young people should be stopped in its tracks, but the relative safety
of smokeless isn’t a children’s issue. The 15,500 North Dakotans who will die from
smoking-related illnesses in the next 20 years are not children today; they are adults, 35
years and older. Preventing youth access to tobacco is vitally important, but that effort
should never be used as a smokescreen to condemn smoking parents and grandparents to
premature death.

Most American smokers are terribly misinformed about safer tobacco alternatives, and
misperception is pervasive even among health professionals. I published a study showing that 8
of 10 health professional faculty at my university wrongly believe that oral cancer risk is higher
for smokeless tobacco than for smoking (13), whereas the risk for smokeless is actually far
lower.

In 2011 I launched the first-ever community quit-smoking program based on tobacco

harm reduction in Owensboro, Kentucky (14). We informed smokers that they can
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achieve nearly all the health benefits of abstinence by switching to smoke-free cigarette
substitutes, including smokeless tobacco, snus and electronic cigarettes.

. T'encourage you to support House Concurrent Resolution No. 3033, which will explore ways
- to ﬁroVide North békota smokers with accurate information about less-hazardous smoke-free

tobacco products, thereby giving them the opportunity to lead longer and healthier lives.
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February 26, 2013

To: Rep. Robin Weisz, Chairman, House Human Services Committee
Legislative Assembly of North Dakota

From: The American Council on Science and Health
Elizabeth M. Whelan, President

The American Council on Science and Health (ACSH), a consumer
education and advocacy nonprofit devoted throughout our 35 year history
to the promotion of sound science in public health policy, urges the
Legislative Assembly of North Dakota to promote the benefits of Tobacco
Harm Reduction (THR) in helping smokers quit and vote in favor of
House Concurrent Resolution No. 3033.

Our own research on this subject, published in a peer-reviewed academic
journal, as well as many others studies as well as epidemiological data,
support our assertion that the methodologies comprising THR — the
substitution of low-risk tobacco and nicotine-delivery products for lethal
cigarettes — have significant potential benefits in terms of reducing the
tragic toll of cigarette smoking by supplying addicted smokers with the
substance they crave — nicotine — but at a much reduced cost in terms

of adverse health effects.

While we are in full agreement that no form of tobacco use is entirely
"safe" and that therefore all recreational tobacco use should be
discouraged, it is still necessary to acknowledge the fact that there are 46
million addicted adult smokers in our nation — about 20% of the adult
population. Further, while almost three-quarters wish to quit, and half of
those do indeed attempt to quit each year, only one in ten (or fewer)
succeed. Rarely, smokers quit without cessation aid — cold turkey — but
the FDA-approved methods aimed at increasing quit rates (nicotine
patches, Zyban, Chantix, etc.) have had an abysmal "success" rate
around 15% or less at one year. Yet, these are the only methods touted
by our public health authorities, who actively discourage consideration of
newer, low-risk alternative cessation aids that have shown promise in
helping addicted smokers quit. Now is the time to widely publicize the
benefits of THR and make these products more readily available to those who
desperately seek to quit smoking,.

The established authorities' positions on using reduced risk products to
deliver adequate nicotine levels to requite smokers' cravings and help
them get off deadly cigarettes is based on long-held mistrust of and
contempt for the tobacco companies — well-deserved feelings based on
those companies’ irresponsible and abusive behavior during the 20th
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century. But in order to truly help addicted smokers quit, those biases must be put aside
and the current facts must be dealt with.

America in the 21st century has developed stringent regulatory oversight over tobacco
marketing. The clear (but slow) downward-trend in cigarette sales along with the
irrefutable evidence of "the Swedish Experience" (Swedish men have shifted their
tobacco use pattern from lethal cigarettes towards much safer "snus," smokeless
tobacco), show that it is in tobacco companies' interests for them to market reduced risk
products. The fact is that such a shift to reduced-risk products is also in the interests of
public health. Further, the tobacco companies could not get away with the nefarious
behaviors of the 20th century, even if they had such an inclination.

Those who support the concept of tobacco harm reduction, including ACSH, ask you to
rely on the readily available scientific evidence to recommend policies promoting THR.
This should include not only snus-type smokeless tobacco aimed at helping addicted
smokers quit cigarettes, but also the newer products such as dissolvable tobacco and
electronic-cigarettes (e-cigarettes): any product likely to be effective at helping addicted
smokers quit cigarettes. We firmly believe that a comprehensive, objective investigation
will help you see that the official policies of adhering to the official dogma: "there is no
safe tobacco product, so abstinence is the only answer," amounts to a "quit or die"
position, the status quo, with the ongoing toll of over 400,000 smoking-related deaths
each year. This is no longer an acceptable position from a public health perspective, and
we hope you will agree that a creative, flexible new approach is desperately needed, indeed
long overdue.

Thank you for your consideration.

P.S. We are pleased to attach a copy of ACSH’s peer-reviewed study “Helping
Smoker’s Quit: The Science Behind Tobacco Harm Reduction” for your consideration.
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Supporting Studies:

Draft NICE guidance for harm reduction approaches to smoking
http://iwww.rcplondon.ac.uk/press-releases/draft-nice-quidance-harm-reduction-
approaches-smoking

The emerging phenomenon of electronic cigarettes.

Caponnetto P, Campagna D, Papale G, Russo C, Polosa R.
http://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pubmed/22283580

Tobacco, nicotine and harm reduction.

Le Houezec J, McNeill A, Britton J.
http://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pubmed/21375611

Contrasting snus and NRT as methods to quit smoking. an observational study
Janne Scheffels1, Karl E Lund, and Ann McNeill
http://www.harmreductionjournal.com/content/9/1/10

Death by regulation: the EU ban on low-risk oral tobacco
http://www.clivebates.com/7p=434




Testimony of Representative Marvin E. Nelson House Human Services Committee 2/25/2013
HCR 3033

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, HCR 3033 is for the study of products that can be
alternatives to tobacco smoking and the potential reduction in health hazards to current smokers. A
significant reduction does seem to happen in Sweden. In Sweden, tobacco usage is similar to the rest of
Europe, but deaths are significantly lower. This seems to be due to the usage of smokeless tobacco,
commonly the moist Swedish product called snus. However, significant differences exist between
Sweden and its snus and the United States. In Sweden, the use of additives is strictly regulated, snus is
treated like a food product with regulations on both the additives and the methods of manufacture.

Such regulation is lacking in the US, so smokeless tobacco products are different than in Sweden, plus
they are changing so it becomes difficult to make solid conclusions.

Similarly, vapor products are also subject to change.

Assuch, it then becomes very difficult to know exactly what the hazards are since the product line is not
stable and the complex interaction of various additives can be changed.

There is also the problem of not letting any lesser danger be misconstrued and thus end up effectively
encouraging the use of such products among nonsmokers. In such a situation, the products instead of
reducing hazard could actually increase the danger to the public.

The potential of this is seen with the use of blackbull or igmik (translates as "thing to put in mouth")
among Alaskan natives. Blackbullis a mixture of a tobacco product, like Copenhagen, with punk. The
punk is normally made from a tree fungus common on birch trees but can be made from other things
like willow. While there is additional concern that the punk might interact to increase cancer risk, the
fundamental thing is it is quite basic and thus increases the absorption of nicotine. They are freebasing
tobacco.

So widespread is this that it is common in some areas for very young children to chew, some start when
they are teething. In some parts of Alaska the majority of pregnant women chew blackbull. Itis
commonly felt that it is more natural and less hazardous than smoking, but it is worth noting that
Alaskan natives have the highest rate of being smokers of any group in the United States. So this would
be an important area to study. Is the hazard being reduced by their chewing, or is it helping to create
the general situation of very high tobacco usage including smoking?

Historically, and today it has been common to see additives like lime or ashes added to chewing tobacco
to do the same thing the fungus punk does in blackbull.

So any study of alternative tobacco products really has to be a study of not just tobacco but of tobacco
additives and their effects.



Harm Reduction Strategies for Mitigating Tobacco Risk
Current Recommended Guidelines and Resources for Tobacco Cessation
Eric L. Johnson, M.D. & Jay Taylor

Chairiman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee, my name is Erin Hill-
Oban. [ am the Executive Director of Tobacco Free North Dakota, a non-profit organization
focused on education, advocacy and coalition building in support of tobacco prevention,
cessation and control. Two members of our TFND Board, Jay Taylor and Dr. Eric L. Johnson
have prepared the material I am sharing with you today. Mr. Taylor is a Health Tobacco
Education Specialist for Sanford Health, and Dr. Johnson serves as our board president, is an

Associate Professor in the department of Family and Community Medicine, and is a physician
consultant for ND Quits.

Basic tobacco facts on which we can, and should, all agree:

o Cigarettes are proven and widely known to cause heart disease, stroke, and a number of
cancers.

e Smokeless tobacco products, such as spit tobacco and snus, have different sets of health
problems, including oral and gastrointestinal cancers.

. [This is well-established information, and you may refer to the current U.S. Surgeon General’s report, the

Centers for Disease Control website, and Mayo Clinic's Nicotine Dependence Center website for a summary of
the decades of research in these areas.']

Some brief information on electronic - or-

e E -cigarettes, are battery-operated devices designed to look like regular tobacco
cigarettes. Here's how they work: An atomizer heats a liquid containing nicotine, turning
it into a vapor that can be inhaled and creating a vapor cloud that resembles cigarette
smoke.

e Manufacturers claim that electronic cigarettes are a safe alternative to conventional
cigarettes. The FDA, however, doesn’t. Some e-cig manufactures have additional
problems with the FDA, including five companies in 2010 cited for manufacturing

violations.
e Text directly from the label of South Beach Smoke electronic cigarette: “WARNING:
South Beach Smoke products are not cessation and have not been

tested as such. The U.S. FDA has not approved these products for any use and they are
not intended to diagnose, cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent any disorder, disease, or
physical or mental condition. South Beach Smoke products contain nicotine... [which] is
addictive and habit forming, and it is very toxic by inhalation...”

Harm reduction , simply defined as “using smokeless tobacco to reduce cigarette
use”, are being proposed to “reduce the overall disease burden of tobacco”.
e A considerable amount of harm reduction data, such as substituting smokeless tobacco or
e-cigarettes for traditional cigarettes, comes from tobacco company funded research.
e No significant data exists proving that switching from cigarettes to smokeless tobacco
products or to e-cigarettes actually leads to cessation.

AS A RESULT, HARM REDUCTION STRATEGIES ARE NOT U.S. FDA OR U.S. PUBLIC
HEALTH SERVICE APPROVED STRATEGIES.



The FDA and U.S. Public Health Task Force have provided a number of .. - and
medications that are recommended _ cessation These
guidelines include:

e Recommendation of nicotine replacement products such as patches, gum, and lozenges
based on proven data for appropriate clients without the negative health consequences of
tobacco products. As well, prescription medications such as Chantix and Bupropion are
FDA-approved for smoking cessation, unlike e-cigs or substituting tobacco for tobacco.
[See “Pharmacologic Product Guide: FDA-Approved Medications for Smoking
Cessation” handout for additional information]

¢ Counseling is a key component in successful tobacco cessation.

e Abstinence from tobacco is considered a best practice in guideline-based cessation
programs. Medically, tobacco addiction is just like addictions to alcohol and other
drugs. The cornerstone of all addiction treatment is abstinence, and that, too, is true for
tobacco. We don'’t tell alcoholics to drink less or that they’d be ok having a single
instead of a double, and we don’t advise meth addicts to drink alcohol to get off meth.

North Dakota has many privafe and public entities — hospitals and ND Quits, North Dakota’s
telephone and online quit program, among others — already rely on approved and best practice

medical treatments for tobacco addiction, just as they would for the care of any medical
.. 4 .
condition”.

While we absolutely support reducing the harms of tobacco, we do so based on science. Should
tobacco users be interested in reducing harms to themselves, there are countless proven, science-
based, FDA-approved ways to help. We oppose this proposed study because the appropriate

agencies to conduct such a study already exist, and that’s the FDA and U.S. Public Health Task
Force. A large body of information already exists.

Contact:

Erin Hill-Oban, Executive Director
Tobacco Free North Dakota

212 N 2™ St

Bismarck, ND 58501

o: 701-223-5613

c: 701-527-1642
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%) AMERICAN ACADEMY OF
FAMILY PHYSICIANS

STRONG MEDICINE FOR AMERICA

Nicorette', Generic

PHARMACOLOGIC PRODUCT GUIDE:
FDA-APPROVED MEDICATIONS FOR SMOKING CESSATION

Nicorette Lozenge,!

NicoDerm CQ!, Generic

oTC Nicorette Mini Lozenge,' OTC (NicoDerm CQ, generic)
2mg, 4 mg Generic Rx (generic)
original, cinnamon, fruit, mint, orange oTC 7 mg, 14 mg, 21 mg

2mg, 4 mg (24-hour release)

cherry, mint

= Recent (< 2 weeks) myocardial
infarction

® Serious underlying arrhythmias

= Serious or worsening angina
pectoris

® Temporomandibular joint disease

= Pregnancy? and breastieeding

® Adolescents (<18 years)

® Recent (< 2 weeks) myocardial
infarction

= Serious underlying arthythmias

® Serious or worsening angina
pectoris

= Pregnancy? and breastfeeding

= Adolescents (<18 years)

= Recent (< 2 weeks) myocardial
infarction

® Serious underlying arthythmias

® Serious or worsening angina
pectoris

® Pregnancy? (Rx formulations,
category D) and breastfeeding

= Adolescents (<18 years)

Metered spray
0.5 mg nicotine in 50 mcL
aqueous nicotine solution

® Recent{< 2 weeks)
myocardial infarction

® Serious underlying
arthythmias

= Serious or warsening
angina pectoris

= Underlying chionic nasal
disorders (rhinitis, nasal
polyps, sinusitis)

= Severe reactive airway
disease

® Pregnancy3(category D)
and breastfeeding

® Adolescents (<18 years)

mgcartidge

delivers 4 mg inhaled nicotine

vapor

® Recent (< 2 weeks)
myocardial infarction

= Serious undertying
arrhythmias

® Serious or worsening
angina pectoris

= Bronchospastic disease

® Pregnancy?3(category D)
and breastfeeding

® Adolescents (< 18 years)

150 mg sustained-release tablet

= Concomitant therapy with
medications or medical
conditions knownto lower the
seizure threshold

® Severe hepatic cirhosis

® Pregnancy? (category C) and
breastfeeding

= Adolescents (<18 years)

Waming:

" BIACK-BOXEDWARNING for
neuropsychiatric symptoms*

Contraindications:

= Seizure disorder

= Concomitant bupropion
(e.g., Wellbutrin) therapy

® Current or prior diagnosis of
bulimia or anorexia nervosa

= Simultaneous abrupt
discontinuation of alcohol or
sedativesbenzodiazepines

® MAO inhibitor therapy in
previous 14 days

1% cigarette <30 minutes after waking:
4mg

15t cigarette >30 minutes after waking:
2mg

1 piece q 2-4 hours
Weeks 10-12:
1 piece q4-8 hours

Maximum, 24 pieces/day

Chew each piece slowly

Park between cheek and gum when
peppery or tingling sensation
appears (~15-30 chews)

Resume chewing when tingle fades

Repeat chew/park steps until most
of the nicotine is gone (tingle does
not retum; generally 30 min)

Park in different areas of mouth

No food or beverages 15 minutes
before or during use

= Duration: up to 12 weeks

1% cigarette <30 minutes after waking:

4mg

14 cigarette >30 minutes after waking:

2mg

Weeks 1-6:

1 lozenge q 1-2 hours
Weeks 7-9:

1 lozenge q 2—4 hours
Weeks 10-12:

1lozenge q 4-8 hours

= Maximum, 20 lozenges/day

= Allow to dissolve slowly (20-30
minutes for standard; 10 minutes
for mini)

Nicotine release may cause a
warm, tingling sensation

= Do notchew or swallow

Qccasionally rotate to different
areas of the mouth

" No food or beverages 15 minutes
before or during use

Duration: up to 12 weeks

>10
21 mg/day x 4 weeks (generic)
6 weeks (NicoDerm
cQ)
14 mg/day x 2 weeks
7 mg/day x 2 weeks

<10
14 mg/day x 6 weeks
7 mg/day x 2 weeks

® May wear patch for 16 hours if
patient experiences sleep
disturbances (remove at
bedtime)

® Duration: 8-10 weeks

1-2 dosesour

(840 doses/day)

One dose = 2 sprays (one in
each nostiil); each spray
delivers 0.5 mg of nicotine to
the nasal mucosa

= Maximum
— 5 doseshour or
— 40 doses/day

® For best results, initially use
atleast 8 doses/day

® Do not sniff, swallow, or
inhale through the nose as
the spray is being
administered

® Duration: 3-6 months

-

6-16 cartridges/day
Individualize dosing; initially
use 1 cartidge q 1-2 hours

® Besteffects with continuous

puffing for 20 minutes

® Initially use at least 6
cartridges/day

® Nicotine in cartridge is

depleted after 20 minutes of

active puffing

® |nhale into back of throat or

puff in short breaths
® Do NOT inhale into the

lungs (like a cigarette) but

“puff as if lighting a pipe

® QOpen cartridge retains
potency for 24 hours

® No food or beverages 15
minutes before or during
use

= Duration: 3-6 months

150 mg po q AM x 3 days, then
150 mg po bid

® Do not exceed 300 mg/day
= Begin therapy 1-2 weeks

#~ prior tg quit date

= Allow atNeast 8 hours
between doses

® Avoid bedtime dosing to
minimize insomnia

" Dose tapering is not
necessary

= Can be used safely with NRT

= Duration: 7-12 weeks, with
maintenance up to 6 months
in selected patients

® Severe renal impaimment
(dosage adjustment is
necessary)

= Pregnancy? (category C) and
breastfeeding

® Adolescents (<18 years)

Wamings:

® BLACK-BOXED WARNING for
neuropsychiatric symptoms*

® Caidiovascular adverse
events in patients with
existing cardiovascular
disease

Days 1-3:
0.5 mg poq AM

Days 4-T:

0.5 mg po bid

. Weeks 2-12:

1 mg po bid

® Begin therapy 1 week prior
to quit date; altematively, the
patient can begin therapy
and then quit smoking
between days 8-35 of
treatment

" Takedose after eating and
with afull glass of water

= Dose tapering is not

necessary

Dosing adjustment is

necessary for patients with

severe renal impairment

Duration: 12 weeks; an

additional 12-week course

may be used in selected

patients




® Hypersalivation
® Effects associated with incorrect
chewing technique:
— Lightheadedness
- Nausea/vomiting
— Throat and mouth irritation

= Might satisfy oral cravings

® Might delay weight gain

= Patients can itrate therapy to
manage withdrawal symptoms

® Variety of flavors are available

® Heartbum
® Headache
® Flatulence
" insomnia

® Might satisfy oral cravings

= Might delay weight gain

® Easylouseand conceal

® Patients can fitrate therapy to
manage withdrawal symptoms

= Variety of flavors are available

® Headache

= Sleep disturbances (insomnia,
abnormalivivid dreams);
associated with noctumal
nicotine absorption

buming sensation)
= Rhinitis
® Tearing
® Sneezing
= Cough
® Headache

irritation
® Cough
® Headache
® Rhinitis
® Dyspepsia
= Hiccups

= Dry mouth

= Nervousness/difficulty
concentrating

" Rash

= Constipation

= Seizures (riskis 0.1%)

® Neuropsychiatric symptoms
(rare; see PRECAUTIONS)

® Provides consistent nicotine
levels over 24 hours

® Easy to use and conceal

® Once daily dosing associated
with fewer compliance
problems

® Patients can titrate
therapy to rapidly manage
withdrawal symptoms

® Patients can titrate
therapy to manage
withdrawal symptoms

® Mimics hand-to-mouth
ritual of smoking (could
-also be perceived as a
disadvantage)

® Easy fo use; oral
formulation might be
associated with fewer
compliance problems

= Might delay weight gain

® Can be used with NRT

® Might be beneficial in
patients with depression

® Need for frequent dosing can
compiomise compliance

= Might be problematic for patients
with significant dental work

= Patients must use proper chewing
technique to minimize adverse
effects

® Gum chewing may not be socially
acceptable

® Need for frequent dosing can
compromise compliance

® Gastrointestinal side effects
(nausea, hiccups, heartbum)
might be bothersome

® Patients cannot titrate the
dose to acutely manage
withdrawal symptoms

= Allergic reactions to adhesive
might occur

® Patients with dermatologic
conditions should not use the
patch

® Need for frequent dosing
can compromise
compliance

= Nasalfhroatirritation may
be bothersome

® Patients must wait 5
minutes before driving or
operating heavy
machinery

= Patients with chronic
nasal disorders or severe
reactive airway disease
should not use the spray

2mg or 4 mg: $2.25-$4.41
(9 pieces)

2mgor4 mg: $2.61-$4.95
(9 pieces)

$187-83.52
(1 patch)

$4.43
(8 doses)

" Need for frequent dosing
can compromise
compliance

® jnitial throat or mouth
imitation can be
bothersome

® Cartridges should not be
stored in very warm
conditions or used in very
cold conditions

= Patients with underlying
bronchospastic disease
must use with caution

$7.68
(6 cartridges)

= Seizure risk is increased

= Several contraindications
and precautions preclude
use in some patients (see
PRECAUTIONS)

= Patients should be
monitored for potential
neuropsychiatric
symptoms* (see
PRECAUTIONS)

$3.62-$7.46
(2 tablets)

" Nausea

= Sleep disturbances
(insomnia, abnormalivivid
dreams)

= Constipation

® Flatulence

= Vomiting

® Neuropsychiatric symptoms
(rare; see PRECAUTIONS)

" Easy to use; oral
formulation might be
associated with fewer
compliance problems

® Offers a new mechanism of
action for patients who
have failed other agents

= May induce nausea in up to
one third of patients

= Patients should be
monitored for potential
neuropsychiatric
symptoms* (see
PRECAUTIONS)

$5.38-$6.20
(2 tablets)

' Marketed by GlaxoSmithKline.

2 :
Marketed by Pfizer.
3 The U.S. Clinical Practice Guideline states that pregnant smokers should be encouraged to quit without medication based on insufficient evidence of effectiveness and theoretical concerns with safety.

Pregnant smokers should be offered behavioral counseling interventions that exceed minimal advice to quit.
“in July 2009, the FDA mandated that the prescribing information for all bupropion- and varenicline-containing products include a black-boxed warning highlighting the risk of serious neuropsychiatric
symptoms, including changes in behavior, hostility, agitation, depressed mood, suicidal thoughts and behavior, and attempted suicide. Clinicians should advise patients to stop taking varenicline or
bupropion SR and contact a healthcare provider immediately if they experience agitation, depressed mood, and any changes in behavior that are not typical of nicotine withdrawal, or if they experience
suicidal thoughts or behavior. If treatmentis stopped due to neuropsychiatric symptoms, patients should be monitored until the symptoms resolve.
® Average wholesale price from Medi-Span Electronic Drug File. Indianapolis, IN: Wolters Kluwer Health, July 2011.
Abbreviations: MAO, monoamine oxidase; NRT, nicotine replacement therapy; OTC, over-the-counter (non-prescription product); Rx, prescription product.
For complete prescribing information, please refer to the manufacturers’ package inserts.
Rx for Change: Clinician-Assisted Tobacco Cessation. Copyright © 1999-2011 The Regents of the University of California. All rights reserved. Updated
September 24, 2011. Reprinted with permission.

AS K AND ACT

ATOBACCO CESSATION PROGRAM

www.askandact.org



Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee, my name is Kimberlee

Schneider and | am the Manager of Advocacy and Tobacco Control with the American Lung Association
in North Dakota.

House Concurrent Resolution 3033 is a harms reduction resolution that directs legislative management
to study opportunities for “harms reduction” measures in tobacco prevention.

Harms reduction is sometimes seen as an accommodating way of dealing with a harmful behavior.

When considering HCR3033 please consider these:

1) I hear alot about smokeless tobacco being a good alternative for adult smokers who don’t want
to quit using tobacco. Consider this: it is not just adults who use chew. The sweeteners added
and new products that have come on the market make it an easy way to addict our next
generation to tobacco. North Dakota’s youth consume smokeless tobacco at a rate almost twice
the national average. (ND, 13.6%, US, 7.7%) In addition, smokeless tobacco is not without its
health hazards.

2) E-Cigarettes are often touted as a good alternative to tobacco use. We are told by some that the
vapor is harmless. Thisis not true. According to the FDA, electronic cigarettes, or e-cigarettes,
are devices that allow users to inhale a vapor containing nicotine or other substances. In initial
lab tests, FDA found detectable levels of carcinogens and toxic chemicals, including an
ingredient used in anti-freeze, in two leading brands of e-cigarettes and 18 various brands of
cartridges. The lab tests also found that cartridges labeled as nicotine-free had traceable levels
of nicotine. Experts have raised concerns that e-cigarettes can increase nicotine addiction
among young people and may lead kids to try other tobacco products. There is still no scientific
evidence that the e-cigarettes can help smokers quit. Until and unless the FDA approves a
specific e-cigarette for use as a tobacco cessation aid, the American Lung Association does not
support any direct or implied claims that e-cigarettes help smokers quit.

Helping people who want to quit is one strategy in a comprehensive tobacco prevention program.
Tobacco prevention requires several strategies that, in addition to cessation services, help to keep
young people from ever taking up the habit.

Laws that reduce the exposure of youth to tobacco use (smoke free workplace laws, increasing tobacco
tax, equalizing tax on all tobacco products, tobacco free school grounds, for example) are sound public
policy. Research bears out the results that more people quit, and less people start after public policies
such as these are implemented.

Harm reduction is ok for individual taking steps to improve their lives but as public policy it’s not the
best we can do.

Kimberlee Schneider

American Lung Association

212 N 2" st

Bismarck, ND 58501
701-223-5613
kimberlee.schneider@lungnd.org
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E-Cigarettes
On April 25, 2011, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) announced that e-cigarettes will be regulated as tobacco
products unless the products are marketed as therapeutic. While FDA made the initial announcement that it intends to
regulate most e-cigarettes as a separate class of tobacco products, much more research is needed about the potential
health effects of e-cigarettes. The American Lung Association urges FDA to move forward without delay with further
regulatory guidance and with additional product research to determine any public health impacts.

What is an E-Cigarette?

e According to the FDA, electronic cigarettes, or e-cigarettes, are devices that allow users to inhale a vapor containing
nicotine or other substances.'

Unlike traditional cigarettes, e-cigarettes are battery-operated and use an atomizer to heat a refillable cartridge that
then releases a chemical-filled vapor.

e E-cigarettes are often available in flavors that may appeal to children and teens, including chocolate, strawberry and
mint."

Health Effects of E-Cigarettes

e There is currently no scientific evidence establishing the safety of e-cigarettes. No brand of e-cigarettes has been
submitted to the FDA for evaluation and approval."

e Ininitial lab tests, FDA found detectable levels of carcinogens and toxic chemicals, including an ingredient used in
anti-freeze, in two leading brands of e-cigarettes and 18 various cartridges." The lab tests also found that cartridges
labeled as nicotine-free had traceable levels of nicotine.

e Thereis also no evidence that shows the vapors emitted by e-cigarettes are safe for non-users to inhale and we
support prohibiting the use of e-cigarettes under smokefree laws. The Lung Association also recognizes that the use
of e-cigarettes may complicate efforts to enforce and comply with smokefree laws.

Some distributors either directly or indirectly market e-cigarettes as tobacco cessation tools. No scientific studies
demonstrate safety and efficacy of their use for this purpose.

Can E-Cigarettes Help Someone Quit Smoking?

e There is still no scientific evidence that e-cigarettes can help smokers quit." The U.S. Public Health Service has
found that the seven therapies approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration in combination with individual,
group or phone cessation counseling is the most effective way to help smokers quit. Until and unless the FDA

approves a specific e-cigarette for use as a tobacco cessation aid, the American Lung Association does not support
any direct or implied claims that e-cigarettes help smokers quit.

State Laws Pertaining to E-Cigarettes

e Six states — California, Colorado, Minnesota, New Hampshire, Tennessee, and Utah — have enacted legislation
prohibiting the sale of e-cigarettes to minors.""

July 12, 2011

"' U.s. Food and Drug Administration. “E-Cigarettes: Questions and Answers.” September 9, 2010. Available at:

"u.s. chand-Drug Administration. "FDAWarnsc.)f H.ealth RisksPosed by E-Cigarettes.” July 23, 2009. Available at:

http:/fwww. fdagov sumers/ConsumerU 173401.htm.
" U.S. Food and Drug Administration. “FDA and Public Health Experts Warn About Electronic Cigarettes.” july 22, 2009. Available at:
fda.gov E ewsroo ressAnnounceme ucm173222.htm.

"YU.S. Food and Drug Administration. “Summary of Results: Laboratory Analysis of Electronic Cigarettes Conducted by FDA.” July22,2009. Available at:
' U.S. Food and Drug Administration. “FDA ActsAgainst 5 ElectronicCigarette Distributors.” September 9, 2010. Available at:
" World Health Organization. “Marketers of Electronic Cigarettes Should Halt Unproven Therapy Claims.” September 19, 2008. Available at:

“ American Lung Association. State Legislated Actions on Tobacco Issues {(SLATI) online database. Available at:



FDA Warns of Health Risks
Posed by E-Cigarettes

he Food and Drug

Administration (FDA)

has joined other health
experts to warn consumers
about potential health risks
associated with electronic
cigarettes.

Also known as “e-cigarettes,” elec-
tronic cigarettes are battery-operated

: . . An e-cigarette inserted into its charger.
devices designed to look like and to i . . 5 .
. E-cigarettes are electronic devices used to deliver
be used in the same manner as con- .o, .
. : nicotine to the user in vapor form.
ventional cigarettes.

Sold online and in many shopping —
malls, the devices generally contain
cartridges filled with nicotine, flavor,
and other chemicals. They turn nico-
tine, which is highly addictive, and
other chemicals into a vapor that is
inhaled by the user.

“The FDA is concerned about the
safety of these products and how
they are marketed to the public,” says
Margaret A. Hamburg, M.D., com-
missioner of food and drugs.

The agency is concerned that
e e-cigarettes can increase nicotine
addiction amongyoung people and
may lead kids to try other tobacco
products, including conventional
cigarettes, which are known to
cause disease and lead to prema-
ture death
 the products may contain ingredi-
ents that are known to be toxic to
humans ox
¢ because clinical studies about the
safety and efficacy of these products  Air is drawn through an e-cigarette during a laboratory procedure that simulates a
for theirintended use have notbeen  smoker taking a puff. The resulting vapor is tested.
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submitted to FDA, consumers cur-

rently have no way of knowing

- whether e-cigarettes are safe for
their intended use

- about what types or concentra-
tions of potentially harmful
chemicals, or what dose of nico-
tine they are inhaling when they
use these products

The potential health risks posed by
the use of e-cigarettes were addressed
in a July 22, 2009, phone conference
between Joshua M. Sharfstein, M.D.,
principal deputy commissioner of
food and drugs; Jonathan Winickoff,
M.D., chair of the American Academy
of Pediatrics Tobacco Consortium;
Jonathan Samet, M.D., director of
the University of Southern Califor-
nia’s Institute for Global Health; and
Matthew T. McKenna, M.D., director
of the Office on Smoking and Health
at the national Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention.

Conference participants stressed
the importance of parents being
aware of the health and marketing
concerns associated with e-cigarettes.
It was stated that parents may want to
tell their children and teenagers that
these products are not safe to use.

Of particular concern to parents is
that e-cigarettes are sold without any
legal age restrictions, and are avail-
ablein different flavors (such as choc-
olate, strawberry and mint) which
may appeal to young people.

In addition, the devices do not con-
tain any health warnings comparable
to FDA-approved nicotinereplacement
products or conventional cigarettes.

During the phone conference,
which was shared with the news
media, FDA announced findings from
a laboratory analysis that indicates
that electronic cigarettes expose users
to harmful chemical ingredients.

FDA's Division of Pharmaceutical
Analysis—partof the agency’s Center
for Drug Evaluation and Research—
analyzed the ingredients in a small
sample of cartridges from two leading
brands of e-cigarette samples.

An FDA chemist uses a device set to the same temperature as an activated e-cigarette.
This helps determine what might be inhaled by users of these products.

One sample was found to contain
diethylene glycol, a toxic chemical
used in antifreeze. Several othersam-
ples were found to contain carcino-
gens, including nitrosamines.

Agency Actions

FDAhasbeen examiningand detain-
ing shipments of e-cigarettes at the
border and has found that the prod-
ucts it has examined thus far meet
the definition of a combination drug
device product under the Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.

The agency has been challenged
regarding its jurisdiction over certain
e-cigarettes in a case currently pend-
ing in federal district court.

FDA is planning additional activi-
tiestoaddressits concernsabout elec-
tronic cigarettes.

Meanwhile, health care profession-
als and consumers may report seri-

2 |/ FDA Consumer Health Information / U.S. Food and Drug Administration

ous adverse events or product quality
problems with the use of e-cigarettes
to FDA through the MedWatch pro-
gram, either online at www.fda.gov/
Safety/MedWatch/default.htm or by
phone at 1-800-FDA-1088. FoA

This article appears on FDA's
Consumer Updates page (wwuw.fda.
gov/ForConsumers/ConsumerUpdates/
default.htm), which features the latest
on all FDA-regulated products.

For More Information

FDA Press Release
www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/Newsroom/
PressAnnouncements/ucm173222.htm

E-Cigarettes: FDA Web page

www.fda.gov/NewsCvents/
PublicHealthFocus/ucm172906.htm

JULY 2009



ne For Consumers Consumer

For Consumers

E-Cigarettes: Questions and Answers
% Get Consumer Updates by E-mailt

¥ Consumer Updates RSS Feed?
Q: What are electronic cigarettes?

A: Electronic cigarettes are products designed to deliver nicotine or other substances to a user in the form
of a vapor. Typically, they are composed of a rechargeable, battery-operated heating element, a
replaceable cartridge that may contain nicotine or other chemicals, and an atomizer that, when heated,
converts the contents of the cartridge into a vapor. This vapor can then be inhaled by the user. These
products are often made to look like such products as cigarettes, cigars, and pipes. They are also
sometimes made to look like everyday items such as pens and USB memory sticks, for people who wish to
use the product without others noticing.

Q: What concerns does FDA have regarding electronic cigarettes?

A: FDA has not evaluated any e-cigarettes for safety or effectiveness. When FDA conducted limited
laboratory studies of certain samples, FDA found significant quality issues that indicate that quality control
processes used to manufacture these products are substandard or non-existent. FDA found that cartridges
labeled as containing no nicotine contained nicotine and that three different electronic cigarette cartridges
with the same label emitted a markedly different amount of nicotine with each puff. Experts have also
raised concerns that the marketing of products such as e-cigarettes can increase nicotine addiction amonc
young people and may lead kids to try other tobacco products. Visit FDA's Electronic Cigarettes

webpage3 for additional information.
0: What action did FDA take today on electronic cigarettes?

FDA issued warning letters to five distributors of electronic cigaréttes for violations of the Federal Food,

Drug, and Cosmetic Act (FDCA). These violations included unsubstantiated claims and poor manufacturing
practices.

Q: Would it be possible for an electronic cigarette to receive FDA approval?

A: Yes. FDA issued a letter to the Electronic Cigarette Association inviting electronic cigarette firms to
work in cooperation with the agency toward the goal of assuring that electronic cigarettes sold in the
United States are lawfully marketed. The agency intends to regulate electronic cigarettes and related
products in a manner consistent with its mission of protecting the public health.

Q: What products should people who want to quit smoking use?

A: There are a number of FDA-approved smoking cessation aids, including nicotine gum, nicotine skin
patches, nicotine lozenges, nicotine oral inhaled products, and nicotine nasal spray that are available for
smokers to use to reduce their dependence on nicotine. Free help is available to all smokers who want to

quit at 1-800-QUIT-NOW or by visiting www.smokefree.gov4.

This article appears on FDA's Consumer Updates pages, which features the latest on all FDA-regulated
products.

Posted September 9, 2010
back to top

For More Information

Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act®

FDA Acts Against 5 Electronic Cigarette Distributors’

FDA's Electronic Cigarettes web page®

Letter to the Electronic Cigarette Association (PDF - 43KB)9



North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
4023 State Street, Suite 65 » Bismarck, ND 58503-0638
Phone 701.328.5130 * Fax 701.328.5135 « Toll Free 1.877.277.5090

Testimony
In opposition to House Concurrent Resolution 3033
February 25, 2013, House Human Services Committee

Good afternoon, Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee. |
am Jeanne Prom, Executive Director of the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and
Control Policy. The Center is charged with implementing North Dakota’s comprehensive
statewide tobacco prevention plan, Saving Lives — Saving Money, along with the North Dakota
Department of Health, local public health units, and other partners. This work is grounded in
science of approaches that are proven to prevent and reduce tobacco use significantly and
expediently. These approaches are described in the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention’s Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, October 2007.

HCR 3033 is not needed. In the nearly 50 years that have passed since the first Surgeon
General’'s Report on the harms of tobacco, the strong scientific foundation just keeps getting
clearer: don'’t ever start using tobacco, and if you do, quit — completely. We have known for
decades what works to avoid and eliminate all harm caused by tobacco and copycat products
that mimic, and therefore promote, tobacco use: prevention and cessation of tobacco use.

Again, it's simple:

1 — we can avoid the harms of tobacco use by completely preventing tobacco use, and

2 — we can eliminate further harm by successfully getting tobacco users to quit for good —
whether it's any common form of tobacco, or any other products that encourage sustained
tobacco and nicotine addiction.

To reiterate, the science on tobacco harms is well established, overwhelming and clear:
completely avoid the harms of tobacco by never starting. If you use tobacco, quit tobacco and
any other product that isn’t an FDA-approved cessation product.

Keep in mind that previous tobacco industry claims that altered products were less harmful
have been proven false. Filtered, “light,” or “low-tar” cigarettes were not less harmful.

If tobacco companies want to make the case or claim that a product is less harmful, federal law
provides a path for them to do that through the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA).

| urge the House Human Services Committee to reject HCR 3033.

| can respond to any questions or comments.



Testimony

House Human Services Committee
HCR 3033

Deb Knuth
American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network
Monday, February 25, 2013

Tobacco kills nearly half a million Americans every year and is responsible for nearly one-third
of all cancers. The American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network is committed to reducing
tobacco use in all its forms because we know it will ease the burden of cancer in North Dakota
and throughout the rest of the country. We are supportive of any genuine efforts to help cigarette
smokers quit their deadly addiction; however, smokeless tobacco products are neither a safe
substitute for cigarettes, nor an effective method of quitting smoking. We urge the House
Human Services Committee to reject HCR 3033.

There is no need for this study, since both the U.S. Surgeon General and the U.S. Public Health
Service, credible, non-conflicted sources, have already studied these products and determined
that, at this time, the available reduced harm products do not provide a path to quitting. The
State of North Dakota should not spend taxpayer money to fund research that is so closely
aligned with — and will be actively distorted by -- tobacco industry interests, particularly since
the industry was convicted of racketeering in U.S. District Court as recently as 2006. The
misdeeds that caused the industry to be found guilty of racketeering were nothing short of
deceiving the public and withholding information that the public deserved to know about the
dangers of products that the industry claimed were less harmful. We are concerned that HCR
3033 paves the way for even more misinformation, and the State of North Dakota should
distance themselves from tobacco industry bad actors who seek to spin misinformation in order
to sell products that do harm.

In fact, HCR 3033 would circumvent the effects of the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco
Control Act, the historic legislation passed by Congress in 2009 that finally gave the Food and
Drug s ++ + authority to regulate the manufacture, sale, and marketing of tobacCo
products. In March 2012, the FDA issued strong draft guidelines requiring tobacco companies to

provide scientific proof to support any claims that their products reduce harm to the public,
including existing and potential consumers.



To further support your rejection of HCR 3033, we ask you to consider the following;

Smokeless tobacco is not a safe Smokeless tobacco products contain as many
as 28 known carcinogens and 3-4 times as much nicotine as cigarettes. Long-time users
of smokeless tobacco have been shown to be 50 times more likely to develop oral cancer
compared to non-users. Smokeless tobacco has also been linked to esophageal and
pancreatic cancer, as well as leukoplakia (white sores in the mouth that can lead to
cancer), gum disease, and bone loss around the teeth.

There is no evidence that smokeless tobacco smokers The 2008
Update of the U.S. Public Health Service Clinical Practice Guidelines regarding tobacco
cessation concluded, “the use of smokeless tobacco products is not a safe alternative to
smoking, nor is there evidence to suggest that it is effective in helping smokers quit.” In
addition, a 2009 study found that it was more likely for American smokeless tobacco
users to switch to cigarettes than for smokers to switch to smokeless.

Smokeless _tobacco - - a to tobacco - - Kids.

Unlike cigarettes, smokeless tobacco is permitted to be sold in flavors such as cherry,
grape, peach, and cinnamon. Use of these candy-like flavors alone makes it more likely
kids will take up a deadly nicotine addiction. If kids are also getting the message that
smokeless products are “not as bad” as cigarettes, the likelihood of beginning tobacco use
only increases.

There are _ -_methods to reduce - _  Studies show the most
effective means to keep kids from taking up smoking and to encourage current smokers
to quit is to increase tobacco taxes, provide adequate funding for evidence-based
prevention and cessation programs, and pass comprehensive smoke-free laws.

For these reasons, we urge you to reject HCR 3033. Thank you for your time and considerations.




New and Emerging Smokeless Tobacco Products

Smokeless tobacco products, including snus and dissolvables such
as strips, orbs, and sticks, are part of a new series of emerging
tobacco products currently being promoted by the tobacco
industry as less harmful, more convenient, and more socially
acceptable alternatives to traditional cigarettes. However, there is
no scientific evidence that smokeless tobacco products are safe
and the use of smokeless tobacco products is not considered a
safe substitute for, or an effective means of, quitting tobacco use
altogether.

The tobacco industry has marketed
a new generation of smokeless
tobacco products as a temporary
way to deal withincreasing
cigarette taxes and smoke-free
policies in public places, thus
encouraging dual use (the use of two
or more tobacco products) and
reducing the incentive to quit.

The Emergence of Smokeless Tobacco Products

e Between 1965 and 2004, cigarette smoking among American adults declined by half, from 42% to 21%. Since 2004,
the smoking prevalence has continued to decline, but at a much slower rate.’

e In 2010, the percentage of Americans who smoke cigarettes fell below 20% for the first time since just after World
War 1.2

o Cigarette and tobacco manufacturers recognize that a rise in indoor smoking restrictions, smoking-related health
concerns, taxes on cigarettes, and reduced social acceptability of smoking has led to a reduction in smoking rates.’

o Since 2005, major cigarette manufacturers have, either through partnership or acquisition, moved into the smokeless
tobacco business. Smokeless tobacco products introduce both smokers and non-smokers to new products for use in
situations where smoking is restricted, while also providing a means for the tobacco industry to recapture revenue
lost as a result of the decline in cigarette smoking.*

»  Smokeless tobacco products include moist snuff, chewing tobacco, snus (a “spitless, moist powder tobacco pouch),
dissolvables (Orbs, Strips, and Sticks), and a variety of other tobacco-containing products that are not smoked.”

Health Risks

Although more research is needed to determine the full scale ofhealth effects from smokeless tobacco 7products,
several risks are currently documented. To date, use of smokeless tobacco has been shown to cause:**

e Cancer of the mouth, pancreas, and esophagus
e Precancerous mouth lesions

e Dental problems including gum recession, dental carries, and bone loss around the teeth.
e Nicotine addiction

Harm Reduction

Despite the risks, smokeless tobacco products are promoted by the tobacco industry as providing harm
reduction, or as an alternative to the abstinence of risky behavior.” Although the tobacco industry, which has
been convicted under federal racketeering laws for decades of conspiracy to deceive the public, touts these new
products as “reduced harm” or “reduced or modified risk”, and indeed notall tobacco products are equally
harmful, there is no such thing as a safe tobacco product.

The tobacco industry survives and profits greatly from selling a highly addictive product that causes diseases,
which lead toa staggering number of deaths each year, an immeasurable amount of human suffering and
economic loss, and a profound burden on our national healthcare system. In 2010, the combined profits of the
six leading tobacco companies was $35.1 billion, equal to the combined profits of Coca-Cola, Microsoft, and



McDonald's in the same year.'® However, in order to make these profits, the industry misrepresents and
deceives the American public.

e Laboratory analysis by the University of Minnesota Case Study: Indiana

revealed the presence of both toxicants and carcinogens in In 2006.’ Philip Morris, USA, announce“d t}}e tes:’t
" marketing of Toboka, a new, “spitless”,
several brands of snus.

smokeless tobacco product, in Indianapolis, IN.
¢ Chemical analysis by Indiana University - Purdue Between August 2006 and March 2008, Toboka

University Indianapolis scientists found that dissolvable was heavily promoted throughout Indianapolis,
tobacco contains nicotine and a variety of flavoring widely available, and heavily marketed with

. . . signage offering two-for-one deals and the
ingredients, sweeteners, binders, and humectants. Ofthe proclamation that Toboka was a safer, more

flavor compounds identified, ethyl citrate is acutely toxic convenient alternative to traditional cigarettes,
with oral dosing; cinnamealdehyde is an oral irritant and However, little research existed then, or now,
may increase the risk of gum and mouth disease, and on the safety of Toboka and other similar

products, thus leaving a majority of Toboka

coumarin, which hasbeen banned as a flavoring agent in S . .
advertising claims unsubstantiated.

food for decades, is a liver and kidney toxicant."

e Carcinogenic tobacco-specific M-nitrosamines (TSN As) Flashing forward six years, and prompted by

have been found in smokeless tobacco products.”® the tobacco industry, in 2012 the Indiana
General Assembly introduced a bill (H.R. 0059)
that would create an interim study committee
to consider tobacco harm reduction strategies

e Todate, none of the products produced by the tobacco
industry are recognized by the FDA as either a harm

reduction or smoking cessation tool. as a strategy for reducing smoking-attributable

death and disease. Tobacco industry lobbyists

Marketing and Use and their allies made lavish presentations to
legislators about the benefits of encouraging

In 2006, the year that R] Reynolds and Philip Morris USA the use of smokeless tobacco and other tobacco

began test-marketing their own smokeless tobacco products, products that they call “reduced harm”

spending on advertising and promotions for smokeless

- i However, there is a substantial body of
tobacco products was $354.1 million. Justtwo years later, in

objective scientific evidence demonstrating

2008, that figure rose 50%, to $537.9 million."* Atthe same that the three most effective strategies for
time, cigarette advertising decreased from $12.49 billion in reducing the death and disease resulting from
2006 t0 $9.94 billion in 2008," signaling a distinct shift in all tobacco products include:

focus within the tobacco industry. 1) Increasing the price of all tobacco products

through regular, significant tax increases;

2) Implementing 100% smoke-free laws in all
workplaces, restaurants, and bars; and

3) Fully funding comprehensive state tobacco

Dual use of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco products is of
particular concern for public health and of particular interest

to the tobacco industry. 16 Dual use of cigarettes and prevention and cessation programs. These
smokeless tobacco products supports revenue streams for three proven strategies must be considered
tobacco companies while also supplying multiple avenues for | before the utilization of tobacco products is
nicotine distribution, thus supporting nicotine addiction and, | Promoted.

ultimately, continued use of the industry’s products."

¢ Many traditional smokeless tobacco users are dual users of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco.'®*?

o Use of smokeless tobacco products by persons aged 12 or older has increased by more than 51% since 2003.*"

o While cigarette smoking among youth ages 12-17 declined more than 50 percent between 2002 and 2010, the use
of smokeless tobacco products among youth increased 15 percent during that same time period.??

o According to the 2012 Surgeon General’s report, Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults,
concurrent use of multiple types of tobacco products is common among teen tobacco users. Among high school




students who use tobacco, nearly one-third of females and more than one-half of males report using more than one
type of tobacco product in thelast 30 days.*

e A 2009 study drawn {rom four nationally representative surveys in the U.S. demonstrated that occasional
smokeless tobacco users are more likely tobe current daily smokers than any other group, illustrating a pattern of
tobacco use that may representa partial substitution of smoking buta prolonging of dependence on tobacco
products?*

o A content analysis of Camel snus advertisements found frequent tie-in cigarette promotions or references to the
benefits of using snus relative to cigarettes.”

o An analysis of receptivity to Toboka and Camel snus in the Indiana test market one year after product
introduction demonstrated a substantial initial interest in the new products among male smokers, especially those
who received promotional mailings from tobacco companies, which often included coupons for free and
discounted products*®

e A review of more than eight million internal tobacco industry documents demonstrated that tobacco
manufacturers, including cigarette and smokeless tobacco companies, develop products designed to augment
cigarette use when smoking is not possible, develop new smokeless tobacco products to exploit smokers and target
smokers who would otherwise quit, and attemptto deter quittingby developing products that appear to be less
addictive and more socially acceptable.?’?*

e Smokers who use smokeless tobacco products as a supplemental source of nicotine to postpone or avoid quitting
smoking may increase rather than decrease their risk of lung cancer.”

ACS CAN's Current Views and Recommendations

ACS CAN and the Society support enacting evidence-based, comprehensive tobacco control policies that extend
equally to all tobacco products, without any loopholes or exemptions. Specifically, we recommend:

» Eliminating price discrepancies between cigarettes and other tobacco products (OTPs) by increasing the tax on a
package of OTPs to an equivalent percentage of the manufacturer’s price as the tax on cigarettes.

» Ensuringthat the definition of “tobacco product” in new laws is sufficiently broad to include all types of tobacco
products, including dissolvable tobacco products and e-cigarettes. ACS CAN and the Society do not support
exempting any type of smoked or smokeless tobacco product from smoke-free and tobacco-free laws and policies,
tobacco tax increases, or tobacco sales or marketing restrictions.

o Fully funding, promoting, and providing access to all FDA-approved cessation medications.

o While the federal law giving the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) the authority to regulate tobacco products
provides a number of restrictions on the manufacturing, marketing, labeling, distribution and sale of tobacco
products, it also allows states to further restrict or regulate the time, place and manner (but not the content) of
tobacco product advertising or promotions. While some of the regulations in the FDA law apply only to cigarettes,
including restrictions on flavored cigarettes and minimum pack size requirements, ACS CAN and the Society
support extending appropriate restrictions to all tobacco products.

e Funding and support for increased objective and independent research on OTPs, including evaluation and
surveillance of health risks.

¢ Questions about smokeless tobacco products and their use should be included on national and state-level surveys,
particularly those targeting youth and young adults, in order to obtain information about the prevalence and
patterns of smokeless tobacco product use. Such information can be used to improve tobacco prevention and
cessation initiatives.
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HCR 3033 — Submitted written testimony
Chairman Weisz and Members of the House Human Services Committee:

Nicotine exists in nature as an insecticide. Simply stated, it is a poison which kills insects. In veterinary
medicine, it has been used to induce respiratory arrest for the purpose of putting down large animals.

Nicotine replacement therapy, used medicinally, is listed as a pregnancy category D. It causesinjury,
including genetic and epigenetic, to lab animals normally used in drug testing. The effects persist
through multiple generations.

There is no safe dose. Nicotine is perhaps the most addictive drug in use today.
Snus is a biological product containing nicotine and other chemicals.

Are you willing to take responsibility to promote the release for wider use of this dangerous material
when it will inevitably expose human fetuses to nicotine. It is associated with attention deficit disorder
and increased risk of blood vessel damage as an exposed child grows older. It has a direct impact on
neurotransmitter activity, and consequently, brain development in mammals, and very likely also in
exposed fetuses.

Please exercise your own humanity and do not promote a tax benefit to an addictive substance that
does not have adequate testing for what is being proposed in HCR 3033.

Thank you.

Dr. Jim Hughes

St. Alexius Heart and Lung Clinic
Bismarck, ND

701-226-0310
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Tobacco harm reduction: How rational public policy
could transform a pandemic
Abstract

Nicotine, at the dosage levels smokers seek, is a relatively innocuous drug commonly delivered by a highly harmful device, cigarette
smoke. An intensifying pandemic of disease caused or exacerbated by smoking demands more effective policy responses than the current
one: demanding that nicotine users abstain. A pragmatic response to the smoking problem is blocked by moralistic campaigns masquerading
as public health, by divisions within the community of opponents to present policy, and by the public-health professions antipathy to any
tobacco-control endeavours other than smoking cessation. Yet, numerous alterative systems for nicotine delivery exist, many of them far
safer than smoking. A pragmatic, public-health approach to tobacco control would recognize a continuum of risk and encourage nicotine
users to move themselves down the risk spectrum by choosing safer alternatives to smoking — without demanding abstinence.

© 2006 Elsevier B.V. All rights reserved.

Keywords: Tobacco; Nicotine; Harm reduction; Cigarette smoking; Policy

Introduction

In efforts aimed at reducing the risk of death, injury or dis-
ease from any behaviour thereare fourbroad areas of possible
intervention. These include efforts to prevent the behaviour
ever taking place, efforts aimed at ending the behaviour,
efforts aimed at preventing the activity from harming third
parties and efforts aimed at reducing the risks of those who
engage in the behaviour. The interaction of these four pillars
of public health intervention can be seen in everything from
pharmaceutical policy, the rules of sport, automobile regu-
lation, workplace safety standards and food processing and
preparation regimes.

Interestingly, when dealing with issues of sexual
behaviour and the use of licit and illicit drugs there is often
strong opposition to efforts aimed at the reduction of risks
among those who will engage in the behaviour in question.
This schism appears to be the result of a persistent tension
between a rational, scientific program and a behavioural,
moralistic approach (Brandt, 1987, p. 182).

The conflict over means traces to a fundamental disagree-
ment about aims: Is the purpose of an intervention to make
people healthier or safer? Or is it to create better moral
souls, to make people less ‘“bad”? The availability of ‘risk
reduction’ among accepted interventions can be seen as a

0955-3959/% — see front matter © 2006 Elsevier B.V. All rights reserved.
doi:10.1016/j.drugpo.2006.11.013

key distinguishing feature between scientific public health
interventions whose aims are pragmatic, and moralistic ones,
whose aims are impossible to measure.

If the goal of public policy interventions on tobacco is
to achieve the greatest possible reduction in deaths, injury
and disease, then it is necessarily pragmatic. Therefore, it is
necessary for policy makers to seriously consider the role of
risk reduction for continuing users of tobacco/nicotine prod-
ucts. This does not mean that risk reduction strategies must
replace other strategies any more than protection of third
parties needs to replace cessation strategies. An ideal pub-
lic health approach rationally combines the various possible
interventions in pursuit of the greatest achievable reduction
in deaths, injuries and disease.

The case for applying harm reduction strategies to
public health interventions on tobacco

Itis estimated that cigarette smoking resulted in the deaths
of roughly 100 million people in the last century, and that at
current trends in consumption will kill 10 times that many
this century (Peto & Lopez, 2001). Roughly half of long-
term smokers will die as a direct result of diseases caused
by their smoking, and half of those deaths will occur during
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middle age. In terms of drug related deaths cigarettes dwarf
the toll from other drugs.

The primary reason for smoking cigarettes is to obtain
nicotine. The cigarette is an effective — but almost uniquely
hazardous —delivery deviceforthe drug, nicotine. As with the
use of other drugs the pursuit of nicotine can be attributed to
a combination of recreation, addiction and self-medication.
The extent of each of these motivations will vary over time
and between smokers just as the reasons behind the pursuit of
alcohol or caffeine will vary between consumers and change
over time.

We stress that nicotine is the primary cause of tobacco
consumption. But it is not the nicotine that causes the harm:
the inhalation of tobacco smoke is responsible for the pan-
demic of cancers, heart disease, respiratory diseases and other
deadly results of tobacco consumption. Nicotine itself is com-
paratively benign. A fatal dose of nicotine would require
roughly 60mg for an average person, but, as with a fatal
dose of caffeine, such a quantity is far more than is sought or
attained by consumers (Fagerstrom, 2005). Were the world’s
1.3 billion cigarette smokers acquiring their nicotine from
clean delivery systems rather than through repeated inhala-
tion of smoke, nicotine use would likely not rank much higher
than caffeine use as a public health priority.

Given the projected death rates associated with smoking
and the fact that these deaths can largely be explained by
the recognition that ‘it’s the smoke, stupid’, harm reduction
interventions are essential. The case for harm reduction is
made all the stronger when one considers that there already
are various alternatives to cigarettes that are markedly less
toxic and clearly acceptable to large numbers of consumers
(See Table 1).

In Sweden a smokeless tobacco product known as ‘snus’
has come to dominate the tobacco market, with sales rising
as cigarette sales have fallen. Many former smokers have
switched to snus, far more males use snus than smoke, and
snus sales amongst females — which had long lagged male
usage — is now evidently growing rapidly. As a result Swe-
den has the lowest level of tobacco related disease in males
among OECD countries, and has reported male smoking
prevalence that has now hit single digit percentages in parts
of the country.

Table |
Examples of western world smoke-free alternatives to cigarettes

Transdermal nicotine patch (of various strengths and regimens)

Nicotine chewing gum (range of flavours and 2 strengths)

Nicotine inhaler [‘puffers’]

Nicotine nasal spray

Medicinal nicotine lozenges (range of flavours and 3 strengths,
including sublingual)

Ultra-low nitrosamine tobacco lozenges [Ariva, Stonewall]

Swedish snus

Hard tobacco [Oliver Twist)

Moist snuff [Skoal, Copenhagen]

Spit-free tobacco pouches

Chewing tobacco

Norway and the United States have also in recent years
seen arapid increase in sales of smokeless tobacco products,
and these sales trends are ascribed at least in part to grow-
ing awareness that non-combustible products are massively
less hazardous than smoking (Morgan Stanley Research
North America, 2006). Many countries also now have expe-
rience with medicinal nicotine (gum, patches, lozenges and
‘inhalers’) meeting the needs of smokers not just for short-
term cessation efforts but for longer term use as areplacement
for smoking.

Smokeless tobacco products do cause disease — but at
very low rates compared to cigarettes. The disease risk of
smokeless tobacco can be made lower still through changes in
manufacturing techniques thatreduce toxinssuch as tobacco-
specific nitrosamines. It has been estimated that modern
smokeless tobacco products are least 90%, and perhaps closer
to 99%, less deadly than smoking cigarettes (Levy et al..
2004; RCP. 2002). While there is popular recognition that
‘smokeless tobacco causes oral cancer’ few recognize that the
risk of oral cancer from the sort of high nitrosamine smoke-
less products that used to be on Western markets (and upon
which the oral cancer risk was based) was actually consider-
ably lower than the risk of the disease from smoking. Nor is
there widespread recognition that low nitrosamine products
such as Swedish snus do not appear to cause oral cancer at
all.

Medicinal nicotine products appear to be significantly less
hazardous even than smokeless tobacco. These products have
been subjected to rigorous evaluation by drug regulatory
authorities in many countries and been in use for decades.
The major risk of such products is not inherent dangers, but
the fact that they are not used at a sufficient dosage for a
sufficient length ol time and so result in users reverting to
cigarette smoking. In part this underutilization of medici-
nal nicotine can be attributed to government regulations that
restrict the nature and availability of such products out of
an expressed concern that there is a potential for ‘abuse’.
This cautious approach to medicinal nicotine, combined with
assorted attacks on tobacco and nicotine that demonize nico-
tine and fail to distinguish inter-product risks helps to explain
why a vast number of smokers incorrectly believe that nico-
tine itself causes cancer.

Current cigarettes and cigarette-like products are at the
high end of a continuum of risk. Moving down the con-
tinuum, but still very likely to be high risk are alternative
‘cigarette’ designs that primarily heat rather than burn
tobacco. These products are undoubtedly more hazardous
than non-combustion-based delivery, but very likely less haz-
ardous than smoking. Even tinkering with the toxicity levels
of cigarettes, through such things as lowering nitrosamine
levels in the tobacco leaf, has potential to reduce mortality.
Non-combustion products, and particularly low nitrosamine
smokeless tobacco and medicinal nicotine products are at the
least hazardous end of this risk continuum.

The relative safety of smokeless tobacco and other smoke-
free systems for delivering nicotine demolishes the claim that
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abstinence-only approaches to tobacco are rational public-
health campaigns. This is not to say that all smokers would or
should necessarily switch to snus or current forms of medic-
inal nicotine. But it does mean that cigarettes need not be
seen as the only way consumers can obtain their nicotine.
This also means that it need not be that the only alternative
to continued cigarette smoking must be complete cessation
of nicotine in any form.

Alternative nicotine delivery devices will still entail risks.
But as nothing in life is devoid of risks it is nonsensical to
dismiss an alternative to a tremendously harmful activity by
claiming the alternative is not absolutely ‘safe’, or to claim
that the pursuit of a less hazardous alternative implies that
the alternative is “virtually harmless” (Gray & Henningficld,
2006).

As more alternatives to conventional cigarettes are con-
sidered it is clear that there is a wide range of possibilities on
the continuum of risk. The variation of risk among inter-
changeable products creates a strong basis for regulatory
intervention aimed at shaping the market. It should also be
the basis for accurate communications to consumers. The fact
that alternative products can meet the needs of some signif-
icant number of those who would likely otherwise smoke
cigarettes also raises key issues about just what sort of prod-
ucts might be available, what sort of information consumers
can be given about relative risks and what sort of policy
environment could achieve maximum public health bene-
fits through the greatest transition of smokers to less toxic
alternatives.

The critical issue in looking at consumer safety, and one
that makes tobacco/nicotine an ideal area for harm reduction
interventions, is that smokers are capable of moving down the
risk continuum when offered alternative products and accu-
rate information on relative risks. A pragmatic goal would
be to move current smokers as far down the continuum of
risk as possible, without depriving consumers of all choice.
The consumer who rejects (or cannot achieve) abstinence but
will use a product that reduces risk by 90% should not be
prevented from making that preferred choice. Indeed, it is
exactly the forced choice between smoking and abstinence
that reinforces the current dominance of cigarettes.

Fitting harm reduction into existing public health
interventions on tobacco

Comparing tobacco control interventions with efforts that
have historically been directed at reducing the toll associ-
ated with other potentially dangerous consumer products
reveals how tobacco and the harms of smoking it, are
positioned in the consumer culture. With products such as
food, pharmaceuticals, automobiles, electrical goods, toys,
sports equipment and caffeine products, reform movements
embraced risk reduction. Though this often came after a
fight between pragmatists and ‘absolutists’ (Young, 1989),
the transition was not nearly as drawn out or heated as

is currently the case on tobacco/nicotine. More than 40
years after the U.S. Surgeon General’s Report on the Health
Consequences of Smoking opened the protracted public-
health campaign to stamp out smoking-related disease, no
public-health approach to tobacco has emerged that can
fully counteract smoking-promoted morbidity and mortal-
ity. While many tobacco-control interventions have reduced
smoking rates and prevented millions of deaths, that success
is limited: Even today, policy makers refuse to deal directly
with the nature of nicotine itself by giving viable alternative
delivery systems to smokers. The result is that millions of
tobacco users, unable to quit, are not encouraged — or simply
not told — that they might be safer by moving down the “risk
continuum” to an alternative nicotine-delivery system.

Current debates within tobacco control circles more
closely resemble those found on issues such as alcohol,
illicit drugs and sexual practices rather than the dangers of
consumer items. In regard to substance use and sex, the prag-
matism that marks the typical harm-reduction approach to
product safety collides with moralistic approaches to human
behaviour. The conflicts over drug use, especially in the con-
text of deadly viral infections potentially spread through drug
delivery systems (i.e., needle and syringe), are well known.
In many countries, battles still rage over what to tell people —
especially adolescents —about sex and in particular whether to
encourage them to use condoms or simply to abstain from sex
outside of marriage. While tobacco use has not yetelicited the
same emotional intensity as have concerns about addiction
and teen sex, the failure to establish a rational and evidence-
based public-health approach to tobacco use can be traced to
similar sorts of pragmatism—moralism debates.

And the situation with tobacco might be even more com-
plicated than the debate over illicit drug use. One of the
challenges facing tobacco control efforts is that the advo-
cates pushing for social change include both public health
pragmatists who are genuinely concermed about reducing
tobacco-associated illness and death caused by smoking
and moral absolutists whose concern is with the bad habit
of substance (nicotine) use. They find common ground on
elimination of smoking and doing battle with the tobacco
companies. But, as seen in the history of the Pure Food
movement in the United States in the 1800s it might be impos-
sible to get absolutists to endorse risk reduction interventions.
Those with an abstinence-only view on nicotine (or tobacco)
might never change their view regardless of the science,
as their views are possibly not actually based on scientific
principles any more than the Christian Right’s opposition to
condoms is primarily based on science.

Can advocates of change in existing policies work together
without undermining each other? If so, how? We see two ways
in which efforts to reduce tobacco harms are unusual, even
in the context of public-health approaches to use of other
substances such as heroin or alcohol.

Forone, the nature of the marketplace and the increasingly
rapid dissemination of information of interest to consumers
will undoubtedly see an acceleration of market changes that
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will likely marginalize those tobacco control advocates who
adhere to an abstinence-only orientation (Meier & Shelley,
2006 ). That still leaves those who simply do not yet recognize
that risk reduction is, along with prevention, cessation and
protection of third parties, one of the four pillars of public
health interventions.

The other is that, thus far, tobacco harm reduction has
not been backed by the liberal public health establishment.
In other contexts, the liberationist and social-justice sen-
timents of the public-health profession worked in favour
of promoting harm-reduction interventions for sex-related
harms (condoms) and drug-injection-related harms (syringe
exchange), rather than insist that people cease engaging in
activities that are potentially risky but impossible to eradicate.
To a pragmatist — that is, to the public-health professional —
the reason for a behaviour is less important than the fact
that the behaviour is going to continue. The public-health
profession supported the harm-reduction stance on sex and
illicit-drug use even before the safety of those interventions
had been established. With tobacco, by contrast, the public-
health profession has yet to support tobacco HR despite the
strong, consistent, and increasingly extensive evidence that
many alternative nicotine delivery systems would be safer
than smoking.

An understanding of the public-health profession’s posi-
tion is important, because its voice would sound loud in the
policy debate were it to renounce its support of cessation-
only approaches. We see two ingredients to the public-health
establishment’s reluctance to embrace the concept of a con-
tinuum of risk and advocate non-cessation approaches for
nicotine users.

First, the public-health establishment, at least in the U.S.
where much of the policy fight is centred. is inclined to be
distrustful of big business in general and Big Tobacco in par-
ticular. Two of the foundations of public health, occupational
hygiene and worker safety, were built on direct opposition
to industry; another, environmental monitoring and main-
tenance, has depended on advocacy to overcome industry
standards that tolerated pollution. And the collusion of private
business with government regulators that has produced seri-
ous public-health disasters — the Triangle fire in New York,
the Bhopal disaster in India, mad cow disease in the U.K. —
increases the profession’s antipathy.

Second, the tobacco industry has played into the hands of
its critics by its attempts to suppress information on the harms
of smoking and cover up evidence of its own awareness,
from early on, that it was making an intrinsically hazardous
product.

The paradoxical, and lamentable, outcome of the public-
health profession’s anti-industry stance is that government
and non-profit public-health agencies will generally not fund
the research that would define the continuum of risk for
nicotine delivery devices, and thereby allow for rational and
evidence-based decision making on behalf of the public’s
health. Instead, in the U.S. (whose research budget dwarfs
other countries’), virtually the only substantive research

on alternative delivery systems now being carried out is
funded by industry: research on smokeless tobacco products
is financed by the tobacco companies, and research on nico-
tine replacement is financed by the pharmaceutical industry.
To public-health advocates whose idée fixe is that industry is
singularly self-interested, venal, and treacherous, these fund-
ing streams serve to discredit the researchers who are doing
what would, otherwise, be the essential work of determining
how best to serve the public’s health. The consequent situ-
ation is this tautology: the only nicotine- or tobacco-related
research that is recognized as valid is research funded by the
government or non-profits; the government and non-profits
will fund only research on smoking cessation; only smoking
cessation is a valid public-health intervention.

Using policy levers to reduce the risk of
tobacco/nicotine use

The potential for tobacco harm reduction interventions
is clarified by examining how risk reduction strategies have
been applied elsewhere. The long battles to establish reg-
ulations pertaining to the manufacturing of food products
or to replace ‘snake oil’ with science-based pharmaceutical
products offer examples ofhow advances in science and a pro-
liferation of alternative products can combine with changing
corporate vested interests and political pressure to fundamen-
tally ‘morph’ a market. The fundamental change with respect
to pure foods and pharmaceuticals did not come with legis-
lation per se (e.g., the U.S.’s Food and Drug Act of 1906),
but from two broader cultural phenomena: the growth and
professionalization of the craft of medicine, and changes in
the social contract that demanded more public responsibility
from private manufacturers (with concomitantly expanded
compliance by the courts). In America, the medical trade
advocated for greater regulation of products having to do
with health so that it might dominate the market in health-
risk avoidance. The movement for purer foods developed in
tandem with awareness of nutritional public health, position-
ing food regulation across both the medical and consumer
arenas. Thus, the role of both the health-care industry and the
public-health agencies was essential to the development of
policies that reduced food- and prescription-drug-associated
harms.

The example of food and pharmaceuticals might be
promising for nicotine regulation, since nicotine remains a
legal drug and tobacco is a consumer product with recog-
nized appeal. But it also highlights the importance of swaying
the medical and public-health professions to embrace harm
reduction for nicotine users. And, the need to implement
tobacco regulation in ways that will cohere with evidence-
based public-health strategies.

There are many regulatory strategies that could be reason-
ably expected to reduce the present levels of tobacco related
morbidity and mortality. A key step would be measures that
would put the most hazardous products at the greatest market-
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place disadvantage. As Sweden has long done in dealing with
cigarettes versus snus and many other countries have done
in dealing with leaded versus unleaded petrol, differential
taxation could dramatically change the market. Combustion-
based products could be taxed so as to be, for example,
at least twice as expensive as non-combustion alternatives.
Cigarettes could also be subjected to more rigorous marketing
restrictions and package health labelling. In addition, manu-
facturing standards could require reductions in known toxins
without allowing these changes to be used in promotional
efforts by the companies in question. Such efforts would
simultaneously promote prevention, cessation, and protection
of third parties as well as achieving viable harm reduction for
continuing nicotine users.

Conclusion

We can reduce tobaccorelated death and disease far more
rapidly than we can reasonably expect to reduce nicotine use
by focusing on the fact that people smoke for the nicotine but
die from the smoke. Applying harm reduction principles to
publichealth policies ontobacco/nicotine is more than simply
a rational and humane policy. It is more than a pragmatic
response to a market that is, anyway, already in  process
of undergoing significant changes. It has the potential to lead
to one of the greatest public health breakthroughs in human
history by fundamentally changing the forecast of a billion
cigarette-caused deaths century.
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The Smoking Status Quo:
Unacceptable

 The American Anti-Smoking Campaign is
45 Years Old |

* According to the CDC:
45 million smokers in the U.S.

443,000 deaths every year in the U.S.
880 in North Dakota







If the Status Quo Continues

In the next 20 years:

- 8 million Americans will die from smoking

“All are adults over 35 years of age

None of them are now children




The Failed Anti-Smoking Campaign

 The Campaign’s Only Message:
Quit Nicotine and Tobacco, or Die
 The Campaign’s Only Quitting Tactics:

Ineffective Behavioral Therapy
Ineffective Use of Nicotine

Rodu and Cole. Technology 6: 17-21, 1999.
Rodu and Cole. International J Cancer 97: 804-806, 2002.




The Anti-Smoking Campaign-
Behavioral Therapy

* NCI Manual for Physicians- Counsel
Patients to:

— "Keep your hands busy- doodle, knit, type
a letter”

— "Cut a drinking straw into cigarette-sized
pieces and inhale air”

— "Keep a daydream ready to go”

Source: How to help your patienfs stop smoking. NIH Pub. No. 93-3064,
1993




The Anti-Smoking Campaign-
Faulted Use of Nicotine

Temporary — 6 to 12 weeks
Expensive — per unit and per box
Very Low Dose — unsatisfying for smokers

7% Success* — "Efficacious”, "Modest”

*Hughes et al. Meta-analysis in Tobacco Control, 2003.




Comparing Nicotine to Caffeine
Addictive Drugs Can Be Used Safely

Properties of Nicotine and Caffeine

Pleasurable Effects: Enhance concentration and performance
Provide a sense of well being

Elevate mood
Powerfully Addictive: Irreversible for many consumers

Can be Used Safely: Do not cause Cancer, Emphysema,
Heart Diseases

Delivery Systems: Caffeine- Coffee, tea, cola drinks
Nicotine- Smoke versus smokeless




Tobacco Harm Reduction
Permanent Nicotine Maintenance

Smokeless Tobacco

Nicotine levels comparable to smoking

Vastly safer than smoking (>98%)

Evidence from Sweden — and the U.S. — that
smokeless works

Modern products are socially acceptable




American Smokeless Tobacco

-

Moist Snuff

Powdered
Dry Snuff




Smokeless Tobacco Use is 98% Safer
Than Smoking

* No risk for emphysema, lung cancer,
and heart disease

 Mouth cancer risk - Very low in
absolute terms*

* 22 studies over 50 years: Rodu and Cole, Oral Surgery 2002.




Smokeless Tobacco and Health:
Oral Cancer

Relative Risks
Smoking ~10
Alcohol Abuse ~4

American Smokeless Tobacco*
Chewing tobacco 1.2
Moist snuff 1.0
Powdered Dry Snuff 4.0

Incidence Rate in Long-term ST users (At RR=4):
26 per 100,000 person-years (py)**

* Over 20 epidemiologic studies, reviewed in: B Rodu, P Cole. Oral Surgery
93: 511-515, 2002.

**New England Journal of Medicine 304: 745-749, 1981.




Comparing Risks of Smokeless
Tobacco, Automobiles and Cigarettes

Annual Death Rate from:

Powdered dry snuff? 12 per 100,000 users
Automobiles? 11 per 100,000 users

Cigarettes? > 600 per 100,000 users

1. New England Journal of Medicine, 1981.
2. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, 2009.

3. American Cancer Society data, 1999.




Smokeless Tobacco Has Worked For
Swedish Men For 50 Years

High rate of smokeless tobacco use.
Lowest smoking rate in Europe.

Lowest rate of lung cancer and other smoking-
related diseases in Europe

If EU men smoked at the rate of Swedish men,
almost 274,000 lives per year would be saved*

*B Rodu and P Cole. Scandinavian Journal of Public Health, 2009.







Growing Discussion about
Tobacco Harm Reduction

2002 Royal College of Physicians Report

”...[smokeless] tobacco...10 to 1,000 times less hazardous than
smoking...some manufacturers want to market ST as a harm

reduction option...may find support for that in the public health
community”

2007 Royal College of Physicians Report

Smokers smoke predominantly for nicotine,...nicotine itself is not
especially hazardous.

Harm reduction

- a fundamental component of many aspects of medicine
and...everyday life...has not been applied to smoking.

- has the potential to save millions of lives, and deserves
consideration.




Growing Discussion about
Tobacco Harm Reduction

2006 Addictive Behaviors, NCI| Funded

“...4 million [American] smokers would switch to the low-
carcinogen smokeless tobacco.”

American Council on Science and Health
Harm Reduction Journal, 2006 and 2011

”....there is a strong scientific and medical foundation for
tobacco harm reduction, which shows great potential as a
public health strategy to help millions of smokers.”
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Indicator light Liquid container

Uobscrew by turniog to the left
Screw by turning 1o right

Sensor detects when
smokertakes a Heater vaporises nicotine
LED lights up when
the smoker draws
onthe cigarette
BATTERY
Smoke without fire

Suck on an e-cigarette and it produces a cloud of nicotine-carrying
vapour with none of the toxic by-products of burning tobacco



Tobacco Harm Reduction:
Moving Forward

Eliminate misinformation on state government web pages:

”There are no studies available detailing what inhaling water
vapor, propylene glycol, pure nicotine...will do to human lungs,
heart or cardiovascular system.”

http://www.ndhealth.gov/tobacco/Facts/E-cigs.pdf

Don’t "equalize” taxes on smokeless tobacco with those on
cigarettes: it denies smokers affordable options

Smokers who switch save essentially as many health care
dollars as smokers who quit: state employees and Medicaid
recipients

Set insurance rates that don’t penalize smokers who switch




For More Information

¢

www.smokersonly.org

Rodutobaccotruth.blogspot.com

www.SwitchandQuitOwensboro.org




North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
4023 State Street, Suite 65 « Bismarck, ND 58503-0638
Phone 701.328.5130 « Fax 701.328.5135 « Toll Free 1.877.277.5090

Testimony
In opposition to HCR 3033
April 2, 2013
Senate Human Services Committee

Good morning, Chairman Lee and Members of the Senate Human Services Committee.

| am Nathan Marion, chair of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee.

| am a student at Bismarck State College and have witnessed nicotine’s grip among my
college peers. Many of these students fall into the dual use trap, where they use other
tobacco products, such as chewing tobacco and snuff, in places where smoking is not

allowed.

For these students, smokeless tobacco use is not a substitution for cigarettes, but
serves as a bridge to increasing the number of dual tobacco users within our state.
While smoke free laws encourage quit attempts, tobacco companies respond by
aggressively introducing more smokeless products to the market as a way for smokers

to fulfill their need for nicotine in places where they cannot smoke.

Do not be fooled by House Concurrent Resolution 3033. This tobacco company strategy
undermines quit attempts by smokers and leads to higher dual usage among tobacco

users. Tobacco companies are using this strategy to increase sales, not reduce harm.

Breathe

Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people.
www.breatheND.com



HCR 3033 - Submitted written testimony
Chairman Lee and Members of the Senate Human Services Committee:

Nicotine exists in nature as an insecticide. Simply stated, itisa poison which kills insects. In veterinary
medicine, it has been used to induce respiratory arrest for the purpose of putting down large animals.

Nicotine replacement therapy, used medicinally, is listed as a pregnancy category D. It causes injury,
including genetic and epigenetic, to lab animals normally used in drug testing. The effects persist

through multiple generations.
There is no safe dose. Nicotine is perhaps the most addictive drug in use today.

Snus is a biological product containing nicotine and other chemicals. Electronic cigarettes contain huge

amounts of nicotine.

Are you willing to take responsibility to promote the release for wider use of this dangerous material
when it will inevitably expose human fetuses to nicotine?

It is associated with attention deficit disorder and increased risk of blood vessel damage as an exposed
child grows older. It has a direct impact on neurotransmitter activity, and consequently, brain
development in mammals, and very likely also in exposed fetuses.

Please exercise your own humanity. Do not promote harm reduction strategies or addictive substances
that receive tax benefits, neither which have adequate testing for what is being proposed in HCR 3033.

Thank you.

Dr.Jim Hughes

St. Alexius Heart and Lung Clinic
Bismarck, ND

701-226-0310



HCR 3033 - Harm Reduction Strategies for Mitigating Tobacco Risk
Current Recommended Guidelines and Resources for Tobacco Cessation

Chairwoman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee, my name is Dr. Eric L.
Johnson. I’'m here to share some of my expertise as a physician, as someone dedicated to helping
North Dakota smokers quit, and to provide a perspective based on my own personal experiences
with nicotine and its harmful effects. [ am an Associate Professor in the department of Family and
Community Medicine at the UND School of Medicine, a physician consultant for ND Quits since
its inception in 2004, and the board president of Tobacco Free North Dakota. Ireceived training in
tobacco cessation strategies at the Mayo Clinic course. In addition, I am a former smoker and am
currently recovering from a stroke I suffered in September 2012 which, quite frankly, possibly
could have been prevented had I never put a cigarette in my mouth starting at the age of 14 and
smoked for over 25 years after that.

Basic tobacco facts on which we can, and should, all agree:
e Cigarettes are proven and widely known to cause heart disease, stroke, and a number of
cancers.
e Smokeless tobacco products, such as spit tobacco and snus, have different sets of health
problems, including oral and gastrointestinal cancers.

[This is well-established information, and you may refer to the current U.S. Surgeon General’s report, the Centers
for Disease Control website, and Mayo Clinic’s Nicotine Dependence Center website for a summary of the
decades of research in these areas."]

Some brief information on electronic - or -

e E -cigarettes, are battery-operated devices designed to look like regular tobacco cigarettes.
Here's how they work: An atomizer heats a liquid containing nicotine, turning it into a vapor
that can be inhaled and creating a vapor cloud that resembles cigarette smoke.

¢ Manufacturers claim that electronic cigarettes are a safe alternative to conventional
cigarettes. The FDA, however, doesn’t. Some e-cig manufactures have additional problems
with the FDA, including five companies in 2010 cited for manufacturing violations.

Harm reduction simply defined as “using smokeless tobacco to reduce cigarette use”,
are being proposed to “reduce the overall disease burden of tobacco”.
e A considerable amount of harm reduction “data”, such as substituting smokeless tobacco or
e-cigarettes for traditional cigarettes, comes from tobacco company funded research.
e No significant data exists proving that switching from cigarettes to smokeless tobacco
products or to e-cigarettes actually leads to cessation.

AS A RESULT, HARM REDUCTION STRATEGIES ARE NOT U.S. FDA OR U.S. PUBLIC
HEALTH SERVICE APPROVED STRATEGIES.

The FDA and U.S. Public Health Task Force have provided and medications
that are recommended cessation These guidelines include:

e A number of safe, FDA-approved smoking cessation products that are prescribed every day.
Recommendation of nicotine replacement products such as patches, gum, and lozenges
based on proven data for appropriate clients without the negative health consequences of
tobacco products. As well, prescription medications such as Chantix and Bupropion are



FDA-approved for smoking cessation. /[See “Pharmacologic Product Guide: FDA-Approved
Medications for Smoking Cessation” handout for additional information]

e Counseling, which, in North Dakota, is offered through ND Quits, a telephone and online
quit program, is a key component in successful tobacco cessation.

e Abstinence from tobacco is considered a best practice in guideline-based cessation
programs. Medically, nicotine addiction is just like addictions to alcohol and other drugs.
The cornerstone of all addiction treatment is abstinence, and that, too, is true for tobacco.
We don’t tell alcoholics to drink less or that - - be ok - a- instead of a

and we don’t advise meth addicts to drink alcoholto  off meth.

North Dakota has many private and public entities — hospitals and ND Quits, among others — that
already rely on approved and best practice medical treatments for tobacco addiction, just as they
would for the care of any medical condition®. If smokeless tobacco products and e-cigarettes
deserve to be treated as effective cessation products, the FDA will let us know. If these products
were currently proven to be safe and effective for cessation, doctors, myself included, and other

health care professionals in North Dakota, would already be using them as such.

On its face, this resolution has a nice ring to it, and I guarantee that after your recommendation is
given and this comes for a full vote of the Senate, someone will stand up on the Senate floor and say
this is a way to help people stop smoking. It’s your responsibility to carry this message and respond
with the truth.

The fact is, this resolution was submitted at the request of the tobacco industry and supported in the
House Human Services Committee by only two people — one of the resolution’s co-sponsors, who
voted AGAINST it on the House floor, and a man from Kentucky who is flying all over the country
on the tobacco industry’s dime requesting this exact same thing of other state legislatures.

In my opinion, this resolution is just a wolf in sheep’s clothing. While we absolutely support
reducing the harms of tobacco, we do so based on science. Tobacco companies have a right to sell
their products, but they shouldn’t do it under false pretenses. They want the state of North Dakota
to help market their products under this false pretense of research.

I oppose this study and ask this committee to save North Dakota taxpayers’ time and money, to trust
health care professionals and the FDA, and to give HCR 3033 a “Do Not Pass” recommendation.

Eric L. Johnson, M.D.
Grand Forks, ND
701-739-0877
dead734(@yahoo.com

Relerences
1. Surgeon General’s Reports on Smoking and Tobacco Use. (accessed February 24,2013)
2. Public Health Focus: Electronic Cigarettes. United States Food and Diug Administration. (accessed February 24,2013)
{da. “ichealthfocus/ucm{72906.htm

3. Treating Tobacco Use and Dependence. United States Public Health Service. (accessed February 24,2013)

4. Tobacco Facts. North Dakota Department of Health. (accessed February 24, 2013) T |



AN ACADEMY OF
FAMiLY PHYSICIANS

STRONG MEDICINE FOR AMERICA

PHARMACOLOGIC P... JUCT GUIDE:
FDA-APPROVED MEDICATIONS FOR SMOKING CESSATION

Nicorette!, Generic

oTC

2mg,4mg

original, cinnamon, fruit, mint, orange

Nicorette Lozenge,’
Nicorette Mini Lozenge,’
Generic
oT1C
2 mg, 4mg

mint

NicoDerm CQ?, Generic
OTC (NicoDerm CQ, generic)
Rx (generic)

7 mg, 14 mg, 21 mg
(24-hourrelease)

Nicotrol NS2

Rx

Metered spray

0.5 mg nicotine in 50 mcL
aqueous nicotine solution

" Recent (< 2 weeks) myocardial
infarction

" Serious underlying arrhythmias

" Serious or worsening angina
pectoris

® Temporomandibular joint disease
® Pregnancy? and breastfeeding
" Adolescents (<18 years)

® Recent (< 2 weeks) myocardial
infarction

® Serious underlying arrhythmias

" Serious or worsening angina
pectoris

" Pregnancy?® and breastfeeding
" Adolescents (<18 years)

" Recent (< 2 weeks) myocardial
infarction

" Serious underlying arrhythmias

® Serious or worsening angina
pectoris

" Pregnancy3 (Rx formulations,
category D) and breastfeeding

® Adolescents (<18 years)

" Recent (< 2 weeks)
myocardial infarction

® Serious underlying
arrhythmias

= Serious or worsening
angina pectoris

® Underlying chronic nasal
disorders (rhinitis, nasal
polyps, sinusitis)

® Severereactive airway
disease

" Pregnancy3 (category D)
and breastfeeding

" Adolescents (<18 years)

Nicotrol Inhaler2

Rx

10 mg cartridge

delivers 4 mg inhaled nicotine
vapor

" Recent (< 2 weeks)
myocardial infarction

® Sen'ous underlying
arrhythmias

" Serious or worsening
angina pectoris

® Bronchospastic disease

® Pregnancy? (category D)
and breastfeeding

® Adolescents (<18 years)

Zyban', Generic
Rx
150 mg sustained-release tablet

= Concomitant therapy with
medications or medical
conditions known to lower the
seizure threshold

= Severe hepatic cirrhosis

® Pregnancy?(category C) and
breastfeeding

® Adolescents (<18 years)

Warning:

" BLACK-BOXED WARNING for
neuropsychiatric symptoms*

Contraindications:

" Seizure disorder

® Concomitant bupropion
(e.g., Wellbutrin) therapy

® Current or prior diagnosis of
bulimia or anorexia nervosa

® Simultaneous abrupt
discontinuation of alcohol or
sedatives/benzodiazepines

® MAOQ inhibitor therapy in
previous 14 days

1st cigarette <30 minutes after waking:
4mg

1st cigarette >30 minutes after waking:
2mg

Weeks 1-6:

1 piece q 1-2 hours
Weeks 7-3:

1 piece q 2-4 hours
Weeks 10-12;

1 piece q 4-8 hours

Maximum, 24 pieces/day
Chew each piece slowly

Park between cheek and gum when
peppery or tingling sensation
appears (~15-30 chews)

Resume chewing when tingle fades

Repeat chew/park steps until most
of the nicotine is gone (tingle does
not retum; generally 30 min)

Park in different areas of mouth

No food or beverages 15 minutes
before or during use

® Duration: up to 12 weeks

1st cigarette <30 minutes after waking:

4mg
1st cigarefte >30 minutes after waking:
2mg

Weeks 1-6:

1 lozenge q 1-2 hours
Weeks 7-9:

1 lozenge q 2-4 hours
Weeks 10-12:

1 lozenge q 4-8 hours

Maximum, 20 lozenges/day

Allow to dissolve slowly (20-30
minutes forstandard; 10 minutes
for mini)

Nicotine release may cause a
warm, tingling sensation

® Do not chew or swallow

Occasionally rotate to different
areas of the mouth

No food or beverages 15 minutes
before or during use

Duration: up to 12 weeks

>10
21 mg/day x 4 weeks (generic)
6 weeks (NicoDerm
CQ)
14 mg/day x 2 weeks
7 mg/day x 2 weeks

<10
14 mg/day x 6 weeks
7 mg/day x 2 weeks

" May wear patch for 16 hours if
patientexperiences sleep
disturbances (remove at
bedtime)

= Duration: 8-10 weeks

1-2 doseshour

(8-40 doses/day)

One dose = 2 sprays(one in
each nostril); each spray
delivers 0.5 mg of nicotine to
the nasal mucosa

= Maximum
- 5doseshour or
- 40 doses/day

® For bestresults, initially use
at least 8 doses/day

® Do not sniff, swallow, or
inhale through the nose as
the spray is being
administered

® Duration: 3-6 months

6-16 cartridges/day
Individualize dosing; initially
use 1 cartridge q 1-2 hours

® Best effects with continuous
puffing for 20 minutes

® |nitially use at least 6
cartridges/day

" Nicotine in cartridge is
depleted after 20 minutes of
active puffing

" Inhale into back of throat or
puffin short breaths

® Do NOT inhale into the
lungs (like a cigarette) but
“puff” as if lighting a pipe

® Open cartridge retains
potency for 24 hours

" Nofoodorbeverages 15
minutes before or during
use

® Duration: 3-6 months

150 mg po @ AM x 3 days, then
150 mg po bid

= Do not exceed 300 mg/day

" Begin therapy 1-2 weeks
prior to quit date

 Allow at least 8 hours
between doses

® Avoid bedtime dosing to
minimize insomnia

® Dose tapering is not
necessary

" Can be used safely with NRT

® Duyration: 7-12 weeks, with
maintenance up to 6 months
in selected patients

® Severe renal impairment
(dosage adjustment is
necessary)

® Pregnancy3 (category C) and
breastfeeding

" Adolescents (<18 years)

Warnings:

® BLACK-BOXED WARNING for
neuropsychiatric symptoms?*

® Cardiovascular adverse
events in patients with
existing cardiovascular
disease

Days 1-3:

05 mg poqAM
Days 4-7:

05 mg po bid
Weeks 2-12:

1 mg po bid

= Begin therapy 1 week prior
to quit date; altematively, the
patient can begin therapy
and then quit smoking
between days 8-35of
treatment

Take dose after eating and
with a full glass of water
Dose tapering is not
necessary

Dosing adjustment is
necessary for patients with
severe renal impairment
Duration: 12 weeks; an
additional 12-week course
may be used in selected
patients




" Nausea ® | ocal skin reactions = Nasal and/or throat = Mouth and/or throat " [nsomnia = Nausea

= Hicoups = Hiccups (erythema, pruritus, burming) irritation (hot, peppery, or irritation ®= Dry mouth = Sleep disturbances
= Dyspepsia = Cough ® Headache buming sensation) = Cough ® Nervousness/difficulty (insomnia, abnormalivivid
= Hypersalivation = Heartbum * Sleep disturbances (insomnia, | ® Rhinitis = Headache concentrating dreams)
= Effects associated with incorect | = Headache abnormal/vivid dreams); * Tearing = Rhinitis = Rash ®= Constipation

chewing technique: ® Flatulence associated with noctumal = Sneezing = Dyspepsia = Constipation ® Flatulence

- Lightheadedness * |nsomnia nigotine ghaaentien ® Cough = Hiccups ® Seizures (risk is 0.1%) ® Vomiting

- Nausea/vomiting ® Headache = Neuropsychiatric symptoms | ® Neuropsychiatric symptoms

— Throat and mouth irritation

(rare; see PRECAUTIONS)

= Might satisfy oral cravings

= Might satisfy oral cravings

= Provides consistent nicotine

Patients can titrate

= Patients can titrate

Easy to use; oral

(rare; see PRECAUTIONS)

® Easy to use; oral

= Might delay weight gain = Might delay weight gain levels over 24 hours therapy to rapidly manage therapy to manage formulation might be formulation might be
= Patients can titrate therapy to ® Easy to use and conceal ® Easy to use and conceal withdrawal symptoms withdrawal symptoms associated with fewer associated with fewer
manage withdrawal symptoms = Patients can fitrate therapy to = Once daily dosing associated * Mimics hand-to-mouth comphance pro'blems. compliance problems.
® Variety of flavors are available manage withdrawal symptoms with fewer compliance ritual of smok{ng (could = Might delay weight gain C Ofqu anew _med\amsm of
= Variety of flavors are available problems a!so be perceived as a = Can be used with NRT action f_or patients who
disadvantage) = Might be beneficial in have failed other agents

patients with depression

= Need for frequent dosing can = Need for frequent dosing can = Patients cannot titrate the = Need for frequent dosing = Need for frequent dosing = Seizure risk is increased = May induce nausea in up to
compromise compliance compromise compliance dose to acutely manage can compromise can compromise s Several contraindications one third of patients
= Might be problematic for patients ' ® Gastrointestinal side effects withdrawal symptoms compliance compliance and precautions preclude = Patients should be
with significant dental work (nausea, hiccups, heartbum) = Allergic reactions to adhesive = Nasalfhroat imtation may ~ ® Initial throat or mouth use in some patients (see monitored for potential
= Patients must use proper chewing might be bothersome might occur be bothersome irritation can be PRECAUTIONS) neuropsychiatric
technique to minimize adverse = Patients with dermatologic = Patients must wait 5 bothersome ® Patients should be symptoms* (see
effects conditions should not use the minutes before drivingor = Cartridges should not be monitored for potential PRECAUTIONS)
= Gum chewing may not be socially patch operating heavy stored in very warm neuropsychiatric
acceptable machinery conditions or used in very symptoms* (see
s Patients with chronic cold conditions PRECAUTIONS)
nasal disorders or severe ™ Patients with underlying
reactive airway disease bronchospastic disease
should not use the spray must use with caution
2mg or 4 mg: $2.25-$4.41 2mgor 4 mg: $2.61-$4.95 $1.87-$3.52 $4.43 $7.68 $3.62-$7.46 $5.38-$6.20
(9 pieces) (9 pieces) (1 patch) (8 doses) (6 cartridges) (2 tablets) (2 tablets)

@ o -

5

Marketed by GlaxoSmithKline.

Marketed by Pfizer.

The U.S. Clinical Practice Guideline states that pregnant smokers should be encouraged to quit without medication based on insufficient evidence of effectiveness and theoretical concerns with safety.
Pregnant smokers should be offered behavioratl counseling interventions that exceed minimal advice to quit.

In July 2009, the FDA mandated that the prescribing information for all bupropion- and varenicline-containing products include a black-boxed warning highlighting the risk of serious neuropsychiatric
symptoms, including changes in behavior, hostility, agitation, depressed mood, suicidal thoughts and behavior, and attempted suicide. Clinicians should advise patients to stop taking varenicline or
bupropion SR and contact a healthcare provider immediately if they experience agitation, depressed mood, and any changes in behavior that are not typical of nicotine withdrawal, or if they experience
suicidal thoughts or behavior. If treatment is stopped due to neuropsychiatric symptoms, patients should be monitored until the symptoms resolve.

Average wholesale price from Medi-Span Electronic Drug File. Indianapolis, IN: Wolters Kluwer Heaith, July 2011.

Abbreviations: MAO, monoamine oxidase; NRT, nicotine replacement therapy; OTC, over-the-counter (non-prescription product); Rx, prescription product.

For complete prescribing information, please refer to the manufacturers’ package inserts.

Rx for Change: Clinician-Assisted Tobacco Cessation. Copyright © 1999-2011 The Regents of the University of California. All rights reserved. Updated
September 24, 2011. Reprinted with permission.

AS K AND ACT

ATOBACCO CESSATION PROGRAM
www.askande~’



HCR 3033
Senate Human Services Committee Hearing
4-2-2013

Good morning, Chairwoman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee. My
name is Jacob Sommerfeld, and | am a senior at Century High School here in Bismarck. | am a
member of the SADD, Students Against Destructive Decisions, and I’'m here with three fellow

SADD members Amanda Jordan, Jessica Paul and Amber Jordan, as well as our SADD Advisor,

Mrs. Laurie Foerderer.

We are here to provide a young person’s thoughts and to show you the faces of the people you
will affect and INFLUENCE with the decision you make on this resolution.

We have been taught from a young age about the harms of using tobacco and the effects it
would have on our health if we started. We all agreed that we’ve probably been taught the
most about cigarettes, the science proving what’s in them, and why they’re so bad for us. We
have also been taught about smokeless tobacco, or chew. And because these two specific
products have become fairly widely known, we know that education is working for prevention
and hope that continues.

But now the tobacco industry is coming out with new products because we’re catching on to
their old ones, and they’re continuing to advertise to and target our friends and classmates by
spending millions of dollars a day telling us how cool and safe these new products are. And
now we’ve learned that the tobacco industry is sending people up to our state to ask you, our
legislators, to tell us how safe they are too.

One of the newest products released by the tobacco industry are electronic cigarettes. These
can be bought right across the street from Century High at the gas station where we buy pop,
TCBY and Happy Joe’s Pizza. Celebrities are endorsing them as a “cool new product” even
though studies by the FDA haven’t even been completed yet, so we don’t even know what is in
them. How can anyone, with a straight face, claim these are “safer” than other products when
the FDA hasn’t even finished studying them?

While we pass a couple examples of e-cigarettes around for you to see, let me read you the
labels from both an e-cigarette and from a can of chew:

From South Beach Smoke, an e-cigarette: “South Beach Smoke products are not smoking
cessation products and have not been tested as such. The U.S. FDA has not approved these
products for any use and they are not intended to diagnose, cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent any
disorder, disease, or physical or mental condition. South Beach Smoke products contain
nicotine, a chemical known... to cause birth defects or other reproductive harm. Nicotine is
addictive and habit forming, and it is very toxic by inhalation... Physical effects of nicotine may
include increased heart rate and accelerated blood pressure.”



And from a can of Wintergreen Copenhagen: “WARNING: This product can cause mouth
cancer.” And, “WARNING: This product is not a safe alternative to cigarettes.”

Our point is simple. This is a bad road to go down. | know they’re just asking for a “study”, but
a study legitimizes the idea. Would you feel comfortable telling us, or your children or
grandchildren, to just use chew or smoke e-cigarettes instead of regular cigarettes? If you pass
this, that’s the message we feel you are sending us.

We are members of SADD because we want to discourage our friends from making destructive
decisions. We are here today to discourage you from endorsing a destructive decision.

Thank you. We appreciate the chance to be here today and will try to answer any questions.

Jacob Sommerfeld, Jessica Paul, Amber Jordan and Amanda Jordan
Century High School SADD students
Bismarck, ND
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Smokeless tobacco products, including snus and dissolvables such | 6 tobacco industry has marketed
as strips, orbs, and sticks, are part of a new series of emerging
tobacco products currently being promoted by the tobacco
industry as less harmful, more convenient, and more socially
acceptable alternatives to traditional cigarettes. However, there is
no scientific evidence that smokeless tobacco products are safe
and the use of smokeless tobacco products is not considered a encouraging dual use (the use of two
safe substitute for, or an effective means of, quitting tobacco use or more tobacco products) and

altogether. reducing the incentive to quit.

a new generation of smokeless
tobacco products as a temporary
way to deal with increasing
cigarette taxes and smoke-free
policies in public places, thus

The Emergence of Smokeless Tobacco Products

e Between 1965 and 2004, cigarette smoking among American adults declined by half, from 42% to 21%. Since 2004,
the smoking prevalence has continued to decline, but at a much slower rate.*

e In 2010, the percentage of Americans whosmoke cigarettes fell below 20% for the first time since just after World
War 1.2

e Cigarette and tobacco manufacturers recognize that a rise in indoor smoking restrictions, smoking-related health
concerns, taxes on cigarettes, and reduced social acceptability of smoking hasled to a reduction in smoking rates.®

e Since 2005, major cigarette manufacturers have, either through partnership or acquisition, moved into the smokeless
tobaccobusiness. Smokeless tobacco products introduce both smokers and non-smokers tonew products for use in
situations where smoking is restricted, while also providing a means for the tobacco industry to recapture revenue
lost as a result of the decline in cigarette smoking.*

e Smokeless tobacco products include moist snuff, chewing tobacco, snus (a “spitless, moist powder tobacco pouch),
dissolvables (Orbs, Strips, and Sticks), and a variety of other tobacco-containing products that are not smoked.”

Health Risks

Although more research is needed to determine the full scale ofhealth effects from smokeless tobacco products,
several risks are currently documented. To date, use of smokeless tobacco has been shown to cause:*”®

e Cancer of the mouth, pancreas, and esophagus

e DPrecancerous mouth lesions

e Dental problems including gum recession, dental carries, and bone loss around the teeth.
e Nicotine addiction

Harm Reduction

Despite the risks, smokeless tobacco products are promoted by the tobacco industry as providing harm
reduction, or as an alternative to the abstinence of risky behavior.” Although the tobacco industry, which has
been convicted under federal racketeering laws for decades of conspiracy to deceive the public, touts these new
products as “reduced harm” or “reduced or modified risk”, and indeed not all tobacco products are equally
harmful, there is no such thing as a safe tobacco product.

The tobacco industry survives and profits greatly from selling a highly addictive product that causes diseases,
which lead to a staggering number of deaths each year, an immeasurable amount of human suffering and
2conomiic loss, and a profound burden on our national healthcare system. In 2010, the combined profits of the
six leading tobacco companies was $35.1 billion, equal to the combined profits of Coca-Cola, Microsoft, and




Laboratory analysis by the University of Minnesota
revealed the presence of both toxicants and carcinogensin
several brands of snus."

Chemical analysis by Indiana University — Purdue
University Indianapolis scientists found that dissolvable
tobacco contains nicotine and a variety of flavoring
ingredients, sweeteners, binders, and humectants. Of the
flavor compounds identified, ethyl citrate is acutely toxic
with oral dosing; cinnamealdehyde is an oral irritant and
may increase the risk of gum and mouth disease, and
coumarin, which has been banned as a flavoring agentin
food for decades, is a liver and kidney toxicant.'
Carcinogenic tobacco-specific N-nitrosamines (TSNAs)
have been found in smokeless tobacco products.™®

To date, none of the products produced by the tobacco
industry arerecognized by the FDA as either a harm
reduction or smoking cessation tool.

Marketingand Use

In 2006, the year that R] Reynolds and Philip Morris USA
began test-marketing their own smokeless tobacco products,
spending on advertising and promotions for smokeless
tobacco products was $354.1 million. Just two years later, in
2008, that figure rose 50%, to $537.9 million." At the same
time, cigarette advertising decreased from $12.49 billion in
2006 to $9.94 billion in 2008," signaling a distinct shiftin
focus within the tobacco industry.

Dual use of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco products is of
particular concern for public health and of particular interest
to the tobacco industry. *® Dual use of cigarettes and
smokeless tobacco products supports revenue streams for
tobacco companies while also supplying multiple avenues for
nicotine distribution, thus supporting nicotine addiction and,
ultimately, continued use of the industry’s products."”

Many traditional smokeless tobacco users are dual users of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco.

McDonald’s in the same year."* However, in order to make these profits, the industry misrepresents and
deceives the American public.

Case Indiana
In 2006, Philip Morris, USA, announced the test
marketing of Toboka, a new, “spitless”,
smokeless tobacco product, in Indianapolis, IN.
Between August 2006 and March 2008, Toboka
was heavily promoted throughout Indianapolis,
widely available, and heavily marketed with
signage offering two-for-one deals and the
proclamation that Toboka was a safer, more
convenient alternative to traditional cigarettes.
However, little research existed then, or now,
on the safety of Toboka and other similar
products, thus leaving a majority of Toboka
advertising claims unsubstantiated.

Flashing forward six years, and prompted by
the tobacco industry, in 2012 the Indiana
General Assembly introduced a bill (H.R. 0059)
that would create an interim study committee
to consider tobacco harm reduction strategies
as a strategy for reducing smoking-attributable
death and disease. Tobacco industry lobbyists
and their allies made lavish presentations to
legislators about the benefits of encouraging
the use of smokeless tobacco and other tobacco
products that they call “reduced harm”.

However, there is a substantial body of
objective scientific evidence demonstrating
that the three most effective strategies for
reducing the death and disease resulting from
all tobacco products include:

1) Increasing the price of all tobacco products
through regular, significant tax increases;

2) Implementing 100% smoke-free laws in all
workplaces, restaurants, and bars; and

3) Fully funding comprehensive state tobacco
prevention and cessation programs. These
three proven strategies must be considered
before the utilization of tobacco products is
promoted.

18,19,20

Use of smokeless tobacco products by persons aged 12 or older has increased by more than 51% since 2003.”

While cigarette smoking among youth ages 12-17 declined more than 50 percent between 2002 and 2010, the use

of smokeless tobacco products among youth increased 15 percent during that same time period.??
According to the 2012 Surgeon General’s report, Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults,
concurrent use of multiple types of tobacco products is common among teen tobacco users. Among high school




students who use tobacco, nearly one-third of females and more than one-half of males report using more than one
type of tobacco product in the last 30 days.**

e A 2009 studydrawn from four nationally representative surveys in the U.S. demonstrated that occasional
smokeless tobacco users are more likely to be current daily smokers than any other group, illustrating a pattern of
tobacco use that may representa partial substitution of smoking but a prolonging of dependence on tobacco
products.*

e A content analysis of Camel snus advertisements found frequent tie-in cigarette promotions or references to the
benefits of using snus relative to cigarettes.®

e Ananalysis of receptivity to Toboka and Camel snus in the Indiana test market one year after product
introduction demonstrated a substantial initial interestin the new products among male smokers, especially those
who received promotional mailings from tobacco companies, which often included coupons for free and
discounted products.®®

e A review of more than eight million internal tobacco industry documents demonstrated that tobacco
manufacturers, including cigarette and smokeless tobacco companies, develop products designed to augment
cigarette use when smoking is not possible, develop new smokeless tobacco products to exploit smokers and target
smokers who would otherwise quit, and attempt to deter quitting by developing products that appear to be less
addictive and more socially acceptable.”’**

e  Smokers who use smokeless tobacco products as a supplemental source of nicotine to postpone or avoid quitting
smoking may increase rather than decrease their risk oflung cancer.”

ACS CAN's Current Views and Recommendations

ACS CAN and the Society support enacting evidence-based, comprehensive tobacco control policies that extend
2qually toall tobacco products, without any loopholes or exemptions. Specifically, we recommend:

e Eliminating price discrepancies between cigarettes and other tobacco products (OTPs) by increasing the tax on a
package of OTPs to an equivalent percentage of the manufacturer’s price as the tax on cigarettes.

e Ensuring that the definition of “tobacco product” in new laws is sufficiently broad toinclude all types of tobacco
products, including dissolvable tobacco products and e-cigarettes. ACS CAN and the Society do not support
exempting any type of smoked or smokeless tobacco product from smoke-free and tobacco-free laws and policies,
tobacco tax increases, or tobacco sales or marketing restrictions.

e Fully funding, promoting, and providing access to all FDA-approved cessation medications.

e  While the federal law giving the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) the authority to regulate tobacco products
provides a number of restrictions on the manufacturing, marketing, labeling, distribution and sale of tobacco
products, it also allows states to further restrict or regulate the time, place and manner (but not the content) of
tobacco productadvertising or promotions. While some of the regulations in the FDA law apply only to cigarettes,
including restrictions on flavored cigarettes and minimum pack size requirements, ACS CAN and the Society
support extending appropriate restrictions to all tobacco products.

e Funding and support for increased objective and independent research on OTPs, including evaluation and
surveillance of health risks.

e Questions about smokeless tobacco products and their use should be included on national and state-level surveys,
particularly those targeting youth and young adults, in order to obtain information about the prevalence and
patterns of smokeless tobacco product use. Such information can be used to improve tobacco prevention and

cessation initiatives.
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Tobacco kills nearly half a million Americans every year and is responsible for nearly one-third
of all cancers. The American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network is committed to reducing
tobacco use in all its forms because we know it will ease the burden of cancer in North Dakota
and throughout the rest of the country. We are supportive of any genuine efforts to help cigarette
smokers quit their deadly addiction; however, smokeless tobacco products are neither a safe
substitute for cigarettes, nor an effective method of quitting smoking. We urge the Senate
Human Services Committee to reject HCR 3033.

There is no need for this study, since both the U.S. Surgeon General and the U.S. Public Health
Service, credible, non-conflicted sources, have already studied these products and determined
that, at this time, the available reduced harm products do not provide a path to quitting.

In fact, HCR 3033 would circumvent the effects of the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco
Control Act, the historic legislation passed by Congress in 2009 that finally gave the Food and
Drug Administration the authority to regulate the manufacture, sale, and marketing of tobacco
products. In March 2012, the FDA issued strong draft guidelines requiring tobacco companies to
provide scientific proof to support any claims that their products reduce harm to the public,
including existing and potential consumers.

To further support your rejection of HCR 3033, we ask you to consider the following:

e Smokeless tobacco is not a safe . Smokeless tobacco products contain as many
as 28 known carcinogens and 3-4 times as much nicotine as cigarettes. Smokeless
tobacco has also been linked to esophageal and pancreatic cancer, as well as leukoplakia
(white sores in the mouth that can lead to cancer), gum disease, and bone loss around the
teeth.

e There is no evidence that smokeless tobacco K smokers The 2008
Update of the U.S. Public Health Service Clinical Practice Guidelines regarding tobacco
cessation concluded, “the use of smokeless tobacco products is not a safe alternative to
smoking, nor is there evidence to suggest that it is effective in helping smokers quit.” In




addition, a 2009 study found that it was more likely for American smokeless tobacco
users to switch to cigarettes than for smokers to switch to smokeless.

¢ Smokeless tobacco _a to_tobacco i ) kids.
Unlike cigarettes, smokeless tobacco is permitted to be sold in flavors such as cherry,

grape, peach, and cinnamon. Use of these candy-like flavors alone makes it more likely
kids will take up a deadly nicotine addiction. If kids are also getting the message that
smokeless products are “not as bad” as cigarettes, the likelihood of beginning tobacco use
only increases.

e There arc - —~—-—---=_methods to reduce - _ Studies show the most

effective means to keep kids from taking up smoking and to encourage current smokers
to quit is to increase tobacco taxes, provide adequate funding for evidence-based
prevention and cessation programs, and pass comprehensive smoke-free laws.

FFor these reasons, we urge you to reject HCR 3033. Thank you for your time and considerations.
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Good afternoon Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee.
For the record, | am June Herman, Regional Vice President of Advocacy for the American

Heart Association. | ask for your Do Not Pass recommendation on HCR 3033.

As the bill title states*, Legislative Management is being asked to take on the work typically
provided by the FDA for medical product review and by national science review groups for
medical treatment recommendations. For the state to undertake a tobacco use statement
and medical advisory role without sufficient product review and vetting by medical science
and treatment advisory groups could place the state in a position of significant liability.
Such statements of reduced harm have not worked for the tobacco industry in the past,

with significant liability court costs and settlement dollars.

HCR 3033, the reduced tobacco harm study resolution goes far beyond studying how to
implement consensus, science based medical treatments, and for that reason, should
receive your Do Not Pass recommendation to the full Senate. This scope is beyond the
typical legislative study review, and is a direction the state of North Dakota should not
travel. Systems exist through which scientific bodies review promising medical treatments,
and make recommendations for treatment standards. Practice guidelines are clinical
documents of high methodological rigor, which facilitate evidence-based decision making.
They reflect a consensus of expert opinion after a thorough review of the available, current
scientific evidence and are intended to improve patient care. Appropriately constructed
practice guidelines intend to minimize harm, reduce inappropriate practice variations, and

assist in producing optimal health outcomes for patients. Give HCR 3033 a Do Not Pass.

*A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Management to study opportunities to reduce the
risk of death and disease among smokers who will not quit smoking, by considering tobacco harm
reduction strategies that encourage smokers to switch from cigarettes to less risky tobacco
products and by accurately informing the public of the health risks posed by smokeless tobacco
products, vapor products, and tobacco-derived products relative to cigarettes.



Learn and Live..

Methodology Manual and Policies
From the ACCF/AHA Task Force on
Practice Guidelines

June 2010

Permissions: Multiple copies, modification, alteration, enhancement, and/or distribution o f this document are not
permitted without the express permission of the American College of Cardiology Foundation. Please direct requests
to

© 2010 American College of Cardiology Foundation and American Heart Association, Inc.



Table of Contents

1. Overview of MethOdOIOZY ... ..oiiiiiiiiiii e e 4
1.1. Importance of ACCF/AHA GUIdelines ........cccouiiiiiniiiiiniiiiiiiniceceececeeeee e 4
1.2. Purpose and Scope of the Manual............cccoiiiiiiiiiiii 5
1.3 StafT SUPPOIT ..ttt 8

2. Tools and Methods for Developing Guidelines ...........oceeveriirieniniineinieenieccieceeseesee s 9
2.1. Selecting Topic and Chair/Writing COMMILLEE .....cc.crtivieririeiiiiiieeie et 9
2.2. Determining the Guideline Scope and Clinical Objectives ........cccevvviriieiriiiniieniciniiene 15

2.2.1. Determining the Guideling’s SCOPE ........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiieci e 15
2.2.2. ldentifying the Clinical ObJeCtiVES ......ccevviiiiieiiiieeieee et 18
2.2.3. Development of the Guideline Outhine...........ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 18
2.2.4. Determining Writing ASSIZNMENTS .....eeiuiiiiiiiieiiieiie ittt ee et eseeeenieeee e 20

3. Defining and Conducting Appropriate and Comprehensive Literature Searches..................... 22

3.1 Finding the EVIAENCE c.vviuiiiiieiiiie ettt st et st sae e 22
3.1.1. Literature Search MethodolOgY ......c.coeiiriiiiiienieecreieseee e 22
3.1.2. Documentation of Literature Search...........cocueveriiiiiiininieiiiieee e 23
3.1.3. Balancing Scientific Rigor With Feasibility ........cccccevviiviieiiiiiieiriiieieseeseeeeee 24

3.2, S0rting the EVIAENCE ...c..viiiiiiiiiiiiiicieeesee ettt 32
3.2.1. Reviewing the EVIAENCE ....cccovuiiiiriiieiieii et 32

3.3. Synthesizing and Interpreting the EVIidence ..o 33
3.3.1. Synthesizing the EVIAENCE .....cc.ciiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiect e 33

3.4. Expert Interpretation of the EVIdence ..o 35

4. Writing ReCOMMENALIONS ...c.veiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieiieie ittt st 36

4.1. Overview of RecOMmMeENndations........ccouerueiuiiiiiiiiiiie ettt s 36

4.1.1. Patient-Centered Care .........ccecuiiiiiiiiiiei ettt st e 3
4.2. Assigning Classification of Recommendations and Level of Evidence .............cccccceee. 39
4.2.1. Classification of Recommendations and Level of Evidence ..........c..ccccoceeviinenineen 41
4.2.2. Applying the Classifications and Levels..........cccccooeciiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiicicicicccee 42
4.2.3. Performance MEASUIES .........cuoouivuiiiiieieitenir ettt ettt 43
4.3. Creating Visual Descriptions of Recommendations and Evidence ............ccccovueeievnnnnn. 44
4.3.1. Communicating the KKey POINIS ...ccuieiiiiiiiiiiieit ettt e e e 44
4.3.2. Creating Tables .....c.c.coiiiiiiiiii e e e 45
4.3.3. Creating FIGUIES ...ccooviiiiiieiieee ettt et et sttt et eaesareens 48
4.3.4. Additional Important Points on Tables and Figures ........ccocooveeiiieiieiiciciieciecen 50

5. Writing Committee Discussions and Consensus Development............cocouveiiiiiiiininiienienienns 51
S.1. Group Decision-MaKing ........c.cceiiriiiiiiiiiii ettt e 51
5.2. Maintaining Consistency with Other Documents on the Same or Related Topics............ 53
5.3. Writing Committee SigN-0fT.......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiei e e 56
5.4, PEEI REVIEW .ttt ettt et e 57

5.4.1. Selection of Peer REVIEBWET'S .....c..couiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et 57
5.4.2. Writing Committee Response to Peer Review and Final Sign-Off ..o 57
5.4.3. Document Sent to Governing Bodies of ACCF, AHA, and Partner Organizations ... 58

6. Web Posting and PubliCation .........cciiii it 59
6.1. Preparing the POCKEt GUIE .....cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiesiieiectete et e 59

7. Maintaining Guideline Relevance and Updating Evidence........cccocoviiviiiiiiicniinieninininens 59

2



T 1. EVIAENCE REVIEW ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e n e e e e e eesaeeeaenmaaaaaeeeaaaan 60

7.1.1. CUITENCY REVIEW ..ottt ettt st st et et e e e st e 60
7.1.2. Late-Breaking Clinical Trials ......cccooieroieeeoieieie e 60

7.2. DEVEIOPMENT PrOCESS .. .civeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiierie ettt ettt st se b sb e nnee st eneeanen 61
7.2.1. Focused Updates..........cooouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciccr e 62

8. General Operating ProCEAUIES .........cciiiieeiieiiiiereeee ettt st et 64
8.1. Disclosure of Relationships with Industry and Other Entities Policy..........cccceruereenenee. 64
8.2. Confidentiality/NondiscloSure Are€ment ........c.coeeevuereueeiiereiieneeneeneeeeeeenreesieesresneesneens 65
8.3. Copyright Assignment and License AZreement ........ccceeeveeeriiereeninieereseeeeereeeseeeseeesneennes 66
8.4. Editorial ReSPONSE POLICY ..coouiiiiiiiiiiiiieetiiine ettt 66
Appendix A. Suggested ReadiNgS......cocveiiiiriiiiinieiiieieee e et 68
Appendix B. RWI: Policies and Procedures for the Development of Guidelines........................ 73
Appendix C. Types of Organizational Relationships and Nature of Relationship ....................... 80
Appendix D. Literature Search Request FOrmu......ocouooiiiiiiiniicee e 85
Appendix E. Checklists for Ensuring Guidelines Incorporate Desired Criteria..........cccecueeeenne. 86



1. Overview of Methodology

1.1. Importance of ACCF/AHA Guidelines

The Institute of Medicine defines clinical practice guidelines as “systematically developed
statements to assist practitioner and patient decisions about appropriate healthcare for specific
clinical circumstances.” (1990) Evidence-based medicine is a coherent approach to clinical
decision making. The Institute of Medicine defines evidence-based medicine as the “integration
of best researched evidence and clinical expertise with patient values.” (Institute of Medicine
(2001). Crossing the quality chasm. A new health system for the 21st century. Washington, DC:
National Academies Press).Well-developed guidelines have the potential to enhance the
appropriateness of clinical practice, improve the quality of cardiovascular care, lead to better

patient outcomes, improve cost effectiveness, and identify areas of further research needs.

The creation of clinical practice guidelines has been a joint activity betwcen the American
College of Cardiology Foundation (ACCF) and the American Heart Association (AHA) since the
1980s. Practice guidelines are clinical documents of high methodological rigor, which facilitate
evidence-based decision making and incorporate group values and patient preferences. The
development of these guidelines is intended to be evidence-based, transparent, and systematic.
Guidelines advance the missions of both organizations by providing clinical recommendations to

healthcare providers for the purpose of improving cardiovascular health.

ACCF/AHA Guidelines are intended to assist healthcare providers in clinical decision making by
describing a range of generally acceptable approaches for the diagnosis, management, or
prevention of specific diseases or conditions. These guidelines attempt to define practices that
meet the needs of most patients in most circumstances. They reflect a consensus of expert
opinion after a thorough review of the available, current scientific evidence and are intended to
improve patient care. These guidelines may be used as the basis for regulatory/payer decision

making; however, the ultimate goal is quality of care and serving the patient’s best interests. The



final judgment regarding the care of a particular patient must be made by the healthcare provider

and patient in light of circumstances specific to that patient.

Appropriately constructed practice guidelines intend to minimize harm, reduce inappropriate
practice variations, and assist in producing optimal health outcomes for patients. Patient centric

guidelines will be a keystone of patient-centered care.

The following nonexhaustive list includes important common uses of ACCF/AHA Practice

Guidelines:

e Improve patient outcomes

e Synthesis of latest clinical research

e Determine whether practice follows the current evidence-based recommendations
e Reduce practice variation

e Influence policy

e Promote efficient resource usage

o Identify gaps in the evidence base

e Serve as a basis for development of Performance Measures and Appropriate Use Criteria

1.2. Purpose and Scope of the Manual

To continue as a leader in the field of clinical practice guidelines, the ACCF/AHA Task Force on
Practice Guidelines (Task Force) has overseen the creation of this manual to assist guideline
writing committees in navigating guideline development. This manual is intended to assist
guideline authors with crafting recommendations that will influence care or assess performance
and/or quality. The recommendations can then be translated into action or activity that can be

implemented and measured.

The bulk of this manual consists of tools to assist guideline writers in interpreting and applying
the methodology. A flowchart highlighting the key steps in the development of evidence-based

guidelines (Figure 1) serves as the basis for organizing the manual. Section 8 describes general



operating procedures that are integral to the guideline development process. These include
relationships with industry and other entities (RWTI), confidentiality agreement, copyright

assignment and license agreement and the ACCF/AHA editorial response policy.

The Task Force understands the challenges in applying a uniform methodology to guidelines that
represent diverse diseases, conditions, diagnostics, and interventions. In all cases, writing
committee members should familiarize themselves thoroughly with the manual, as these policies
and standards provide the framework for guideline development. However, if warranted, the

Task Force may allow exceptions to the written policies.





